
***Amended Agenda*** 

 

LEAVENWORTH COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

Agenda for a Regular Meeting of 5:30 P.M., Wednesday, November 8, 2023 

County Courthouse - 300 Walnut Street - Leavenworth, Kansas 66048 

www.leavenworthcounty.gov 
 

1. Call to Order  

2. Pledge of Allegiance   

3.  Roll Call 

4.  Approval of Minutes 
  

5. Secretary’s Report 

 

6.  Declarations: (if necessary) 

A. Declarations of receipt of communications by Planning Commissioners 

B. Disclosure of ex-parte communications for each hearing item 

C. Declarations of abstention from specific agenda items by a Commissioner 

 

7. Approval of Agenda  

 

8.  Consent Agenda  

 

A. Case DEV-23-134 & 135 Preliminary and Final Plat Bosworth Addition NO. 2 

Consideration of a Preliminary and Final Plat for all of Lot 12, Morning Deer Farms 

Subdivision and a Tract of Land in the North Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section 

16, Township 12 South, Range 22 East, of the 6th P.M., in Leavenworth County, Kansas 

Also known as 00000 Morning Deer Road, Linwood 

PID: 232-09-0-00-00-021.00 

 

B. Case DEV-23-144 Replat of Goodness and Mercy Farm 

Consideration of a Replat of Lots 2 and 3, Valley View Subdivision, in the Northeast 

Quarter of Section 14, Township 11 South, Range 20 East of the 6th P.M., Leavenworth 

County, Kansas.  

Also known as 00000 246th Street, Tonganoxie 

PID: 206-14-0-00-00-011.00 & 012.00 

 

9.  Regular Agenda  

 

A. Case DEV-23-136 Special Use Permit Tri-Hull Crane Rental, LLC 

Consideration of an application for a Special Use Permit for a Contractor’s Yard for Tri-

Hull Crane Rental, on a tract of land in the southeast quarter of Section 11, Township 12, 

Range 20 East of the 6th P.M. Leavenworth County, Kansas 

Also known as 24838 Loring Road  

PID: 211-11-0-00-00-017.02 

***Public Hearing Required*** 

***Public Comment limited to three minutes per person*** 

 

 

http://www.leavenworthcounty.gov/


 

B. Case DEV-23-118 Rezoning McGee Estate and PCDI  

Consideration of a rezoning request from RR-2.5 zoning district to R1 (43) zoning district 

on the following described property: The North 908.37 feet of the Southeast ¼ of Section 

16, Township 11 South, Range 22 East of the Sixth P.M. in Leavenworth County, 

Kansas. 

Also known as 17679 166th Street 

PID: 185-16-0-00-00-063.00 

 

C. Case DEV-23-137 Rezoning Murphy and Reilly 

Consideration of a rezoning request from RR-2.5 zoning district to R1 (43) zoning district 

on the following described property: The Northwest Quarter of Section 15, Township 11 

South, Range 22 East of the Sixth P.M., in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

Also known as 16271 Evans Road, Basehor 

PID: 185-15-0-00-00-003.00 

***Public Hearing Required*** 

***Public Comment limited to three minutes per person*** 

 

Adjournment of Planning Commission 

 

Work Session – Development Plans 

 

Upcoming meeting dates:   

 

• Wednesday, December 13, 2023, 5:30 PM  

  Regular Planning Commission Meeting 

 

For More Information 

If you have any questions or need to make special arrangements for a meeting,  

please call or stop by the Planning and Zoning Department. 

Contact Stephanie Sloop – 913-684-0465 

 

Planning Commission Seating Chart 2023 

 

 

Jeff  

Spink 

Doug 

Tystad 

Robert 

Owens 

Steve  

Skeet 

Allan 

Stork 

Chairman 

Marcus 
Majure William 

Gottschalk Wolf  

Schmidt 
Jaden 

Bailey 
Steve 

Rosenthal 



Parcel Boundaries

Zoning
B-1; B-2; B-3

I-1; I-2; I-3

PUD; R-1; R-1(15);
R-1(43); R-2

RR-2.5

RR-5

DEV-23-134 & 135
Preliminary and Final Plat
Bosworth Addition NO. 2

DEV-23-144
Replat of Goodness

and Mercy Farm

DEV-23-136
Special Use Permit

Tri-Hull Crane Rental, LLC

DEV-23-118
Rezoning McGee
Estate and PCDI DEV-23-137

Rezoning Murphy
and Reilly



 

 1 

LEAVENWORTH COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

October 11, 2023 

 
The complete recorded meeting can be found on the County’s YouTube channel. 

 
The Planning Commission meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Members present:  Doug Tystad, William Gottschalk, Jeff Spink, Marcus Majure, Steve Rosenthal, Allan Stork, 
Wolf Schmidt and Steve Skeet 
 
Members absent: Jaden Bailey and Robert Owens 
 
Staff present: John Jacobson-Director, Stephanie Sloop-Planning Coordinator, Misty Brown-County Counselor 
 
Minutes: 
 
Commissioner Stork made a motion to approve the minutes. Commissioner Schmidt seconded the motion. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE - Motion to approve the minutes passed, 6/0 (1 abstention, 2 absent) 
 
Secretary’s Report:  
 
John Jacobson gave the secretary’s report going over the agenda. Indicating that there were three plats on the 
consent agenda. Approval of the agenda will approve those plats. 
 
Commissioner Schmidt made a motion to approve the agenda.  Commissioner Tystad seconded the 
motion.   
 
ROLL CALL VOTE - Motion to approve the agenda passed, 7/0  
 
Case DEV-023 Preliminary Plat Garden Villa 
Consideration of a Preliminary Plat for Garden Villa on the following described property: A Replat of 
Lots 9A and 9B, Deer Mound Subdivision, of the 6th P.M., Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

 
John Jacobson gave the staff report for the above-listed case. Jacobson stated that the applicant is asking for 
an exception to the plat. He asked the board if they recommended granting the exception they first make a 
motion granting the exception and then make a motion on the plat. 
 
Chairman Majure asked if there were any questions or discussions from the board. Chairman Majure asked if 
the applicant wished to speak. Joe Herring, Herring Surveying, addressed the board, further explaining the 
nature of his request. 
 
Chairman Majure asked if there were any further questions or discussions from the board, if not he would 
accept a motion. 
   
Commissioner Stork motioned to approve the exception requested for Case DEV-23-023 a Preliminary 
Plat for Garden Villa.  Commissioner Schmidt seconded the motion.   
 
ROLL CALL VOTE - Motion to approve passed 5/2 (2 Absent) 
 
Commissioner Tystad voted against the motion for the reason of future growth. Commissioner Rosenthal voted 
against the motion as it goes against regulations and is poor planning.  
 
Commissioner Stork motioned to approve DEV-23-021 a Preliminary Plat for Garden Villa. 
Commissioner Schmidt seconded the motion.   
 



 

 2 

ROLL CALL VOTE - Motion to approve passed 6/1 (2 Absent) 
 
Commissioner Rosenthal voted against the motion for the same reason as before. 
 
Case DEV-23-132 & 133 Preliminary and Final Plat – Doane Acres 
Consideration of a Preliminary and Final Plat for Doane Acres on the following described property: 
Tracts of land in the Southeast Quarter of Fractional Section 3, Township 10 South, Range 23 East of 
the 6th P.M., Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

John Jacobson gave the staff report for the above-listed case. Jacobson did point out that the applicant is 
asking for an exception to the plat. He asked the board that if they were recommending approval that they first 
make a motion granting the exception and then make a motion on the plat. 
 
Chairman Majure asked if there were any questions or discussions from the board. Chairman Majure asked if 
the applicant wished to speak. Joe Herring, Herring Surveying, addressed the board, further explaining the plat. 
 
Chairman Majure asked if there were any further questions or discussions from the board, if not he would 
accept a motion. 
   
Commissioner Rosenthal motioned to approve the exception requested with the plat.  Commissioner 
Gottschalk seconded the motion.   
 
ROLL CALL VOTE - Motion to approve passed 7/0 (2 Absent) 
 
Commissioner Rosenthal motioned to approve DEV-23-132 & 133 a Preliminary and Final Plat for Doane 
Acres.  Commissioner Skeet seconded the motion.   
 
ROLL CALL VOTE - Motion to approve passed 7/0 (2 Absent) 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:28 p.m. 



LEAVENWORTH COUNTY 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

STAFF REPORT 
CASE NO: DEV-23-134 & 23-135 BOSWORTH ADDITION NO. 2              November 8, 2023 

REQUEST: Consent Agenda  

☒ Preliminary Plat               ☒ Final Plat 

STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
JOHN JACOBSON 
DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT PROPERTY: 00000 MORNING DEER ROAD, LINWOOD, KANSAS 66052 

 

APPLICANT/APPLICANT AGENT: 
AUSTIN THOMPSON 
ATLAS LAND CONSULTING 

PROPERTY OWNER: 
MICHAEL & BARBARA BOSWORTH 
17161 Morning Deer Road 
Linwood, KS 66052 

CONCURRENT APPLICATIONS: 
NONE 

LAND USE 

ZONING: RR 2.5 

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION:  
Rural Residential 2.5 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: All of Lot 12, Morning Deer Farms Subdivision and a tract 
of land in the North Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section 16, Township 12 
South, Range 22 East of the 6th P.M., in Leavenworth County Kansas. 

SUBDIVISION: Morning Deer Farm 
Subdivision Lot 12 and one Un-
platted Tract. 

FLOODPLAIN: N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL PROPERTY INFORMATION 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-23-134 & 135, Preliminary & 

Final Plat for Bosworth Addition No 2, to the Board of County 
Commission, with or without conditions; or 

2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-23-134 & 135, Preliminary & Final 
Plat for Bosworth Addition No 2, to the Board of County Commission 
for the following reasons; or  

3. Continue the hearing to another date, time, and place. 

PARCEL SIZE: 15.03 ACRES 

PARCEL ID NO:  
232-09-0-00-00-021.00 &  
235-16-0-00-00-005.00 

BUILDINGS:  
1 AGRICULTURAL BUILDING 

PROJECT SUMMARY: 
Request for a preliminary and final plat approval to join the property located at 
00000 Morning Deer Road, Lot 12 and 00000 170th Street (235-16-0-00-00-
005.00 and 232-09-0-00-00-021.00) as Lot 1 of Bosworth Addition No 2. 

ACCESS/STREET: 
Morning Deer Road - COUNTY Local, 
PAVED ± 20’; 

Location Map: (021 & 005) 

 

SEWER: PRIVATE SEPTIC SYSTEM 

FIRE: SHERMAN 

WATER: RWD #7 

ELECTRIC: EVERGY 

NOTICE & REVIEW: 

STAFF REVIEW:  
10/19/2023 

NEWSPAPER NOTIFICATION: 
N/A 

NOTICE TO SURROUNDING 
PROPERTY OWNERS:  

N/A 

 
 
 
 
 



STANDARDS TO BE CONSIDERED:  

Leavenworth County Zoning and Subdivision Standards: Preliminary Review Met Not Met 

35-40 Preliminary Plat Content X  

 

40-20 Final Plat Content X  

 

41-6 Access Management X  

 

41-6.B.a-
c. 

Entrance Spacing X  

 

41-6.C. Public Road Access Management Standards X  

 

43 Cross Access Easements N/A  

 

50-20 Utility Requirements X  

 

50-30 Other Requirements X  

 

50-40 Minimum Design Standards X  

 

50-50 Sensitive Land Development N/A  

 

50-60. Dedication of Reservation of Public Sites and Open Spaces N/A  

 

STAFF COMMENTS: 

The applicant is proposing to join two parcels, by replatting all of lot 12 of Morning Deer Farms Subdivision, a 4.53-acre lot and a 10.20-

acre tract South of this lot. The Subdivision is classified as a Class C with all lots lying within the Rural Growth Area of Leavenworth 

County. Staff is supportive of a waiver of the requirement to connect to a sanitary sewer system as sanitary sewers are not located 

within 660’ of the subdivision (see condition 1).  Once combined, Lots 1 will be approximately 15.03 acres in size. The lot meets the 

minimum requirements for the RR-2.5 zoning district. Staff is generally in support. 

PROPOSED CONDITIONS: 

1. Building permits shall be required for any new construction. 

2. Erosion control shall be used when designing and constructing driveways.  A form of sediment control shall be installed before 

work begins and maintained throughout the time that the land disturbing activities are taking place.  Re-vegetation of all disturbed 

sites shall be completed within 45 days after completion of final grading weather permitting. 

3. A waiver for the use of private septic systems within this subdivision is granted with this approval. 

4. The developer must comply with the following memorandums: 

a. Email – Kyle Burkhardt, Evergy, dated September 28, 2023 

b. Email - RWD 7-Jalayne Turner, dated August 29, 2023 

c. Email – Dylan Ritter, Assistant Chief – Sherman FD, dated August 25, 2023 

d. Memo – Chuck Magaha, Emergency Management, dated September 29, 2023 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

A: Application 

B: Narrative  

C: Memorandums 

















XX

X
X

X
X

XXXXXXXXXXXX

FOUND 1/2" REBAR NO CAP
ORIGIN UNCERTAIN (HELD E/W,
6.05' NORTH OF SECTION LINE)

1
7

0
TH

 S
TR

EE
T

4
0

' R
/

W
 P

ER
 B

O
O

K
 D

, 
P

A
G

E 
3

3
2

, 
B

O
O

K
 J

,

P
A

G
E 

2
7

4
 A

N
D

 B
O

O
K

 4
7

6
, 

P
A

G
E 

1
0

9

GRAVEL DRIVE

BUILDING
ACCESSORY BUILDING

BUILDING 11'X26'
(NORTH OF BUILDING LINE BY 6.83')

UNPLATTED
PARCEL ID

2351600000006000
OWNER:

JOSHUA CHARLES &
SARA KRISTINE PIERCE

UNPLATTED
PARCEL ID

2351600000005000
OWNER:

MICHAEL E & BARBARA
ANN BOSWORTH TRUST

UNPLATTED
PARCEL ID

2351600000004000
OWNER:

MARK E & CHERYL L ROSS

ROAD EASEMENT PER BOOK 555 PAGE 360 (PRIVATE DRIVE)

FOUND 1" SQUARE HEAD
BOLT ORIGIN UNCERTAIN
(HELD E/W & 7.27'
NORTH OF CORNER)

FOUND 1/2" REBAR NO
CAP ORIGIN UNCERTAIN
(HELD E/W, 8.75' NORTH
OF SECTION LINE)

FOUND 1/2" REBAR NO
CAP ORIGIN UNCERTAIN
(7.21' NORTH OF
SECTION LINE)

FOUND 1/2" REBAR
NO CAP ORIGIN

UNCERTAIN (3.27'
SOUTH OF

SECTION LINE)

POND

ROAD EASEMENT PER BOOK 555 PAGE 360 (PRIVATE DRIVE)

LOT 1
637990.85 SQ FT +/-

14.65 ACRES +/-

8' U/E

20' U/E

8'
 U

/E

8'
 U

/E

75' B/L

40
' B

/L

40
' B

/L

40
' B

/L

40
' B

/L

15' B/L

40' B/L

920

925

94
0

93
5 94

0

93
0

92
5 92

0

935

940

94
0

935

93
0

92
5

930

925

920

90
5

915

915

91
5

91
5930

925

920

910

MORNING DEER RD
60' R/W PER PLAT MORNING DEER FARM

SUBDIVISION
60' R/W

POINT OF
BEGINNING

TREELINE (TYP)

30' TO CL

20' U/E

20
' U

/E

20
' U

/E

FOUND 1/2" REBAR CAP
ALC KS CLS 363 MO CLS
2022014231

FOUND 1/2" REBAR CAP
ALC KS CLS 363 MO CLS

2022014231

FOUND 1/2" REBAR CAP
ALC KS CLS 363 MO CLS

2022014231
FOUND 1/2" REBAR CAP
ALC KS CLS 363 MO CLS
2022014231

FENCE

UNPLATTED
PARCEL ID

2351600000012000
OWNER:

MICHAEL E & BARBARA
ANN BOSWORTH TRUST

GENERAL NOTES

DATE

PREPARED FOR

SEC-TWN-RNG

VICINITY MAP

SCALE

LEGEND

SEPTEMBER 20TH, 2023

16-12S-22E

BARBARA & MICHAEL BOSWORTH

PRELIMINARY PLAT

This is to certify on this 27TH day of JULY, 2023 this field survey was
completed on the ground by me or under my direct supervision and that
said survey meets or exceeds the "Kansas Minimum Standards" for
boundary surveys.

ROGER B. DILL LS 1408

S:\Atlas Land Consulting\2023\23-224 Bosworth Phase 2\Bosworth Addition No.2.dwg

JOB NO:23-224

B/L
U/E

UTILITIES
EVERGY - 800-383-1183
RURAL WATER DISTRICT 7 - 913-856-7375

DENOTES FOUND MONUMENT AS NOTED
DENOTES SET 1/2" REBAR IN CONCRETE WITH
CAP ALC KS CLS 363 MO CLS 2022014231
DENOTES FOUND PROPERTY CORNER AS NOTED
BUILDING LINE
UTILITY EASEMENT

ADDRESS: 17161 MORNING DEER RD,
LINWOOD, KS 66052

SECTION 16-12S-22E
Not to Scale

NE 1/4NW 1/4

SW 1/4

Project
Location

SE 1/4

17
0T

H
 S

TR
EE

T

LORING ROAD

16
6T

H
 S

TR
EE

T

SECTION 09-12S-22E
09

16

BOSWORTH ADDITION NO. 2

DESCRIPTION
BOOK 602, PAGE 1075
THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTH HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 16,
TOWNSHIP 12, RANGE 22, LESS THAT PART USED FOR PUBLIC ROAD.

BOOK 536 PAGE 240
LOT TWELVE (12), MORNING DEER FARMS SUBDIVISION, LEAVENWORTH COUNTY, KANSAS.

SURVEYORS SUGGESTED
ALL OF LOT 12, MORNING DEER FARMS SUBDIVISION AND A TRACT OF LAND IN THE NORTH HALF OF THE
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 12 SOUTH, RANGE 22 EAST, OF THE 6TH P.M., IN LEAVENWORTH
COUNTY, KANSAS, PREPARED BY ROGER B. DILL PS 1408 ON SEPTEMBER 20TH, 2023; BEING MORE PARTICULARLY
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 88°15'44" WEST,
ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 662.69 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST
LINE OF SAID LOT 12, ALSO KNOWN TO BE THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF HEREIN DESCRIBED TRACT; THENCE
SOUTH 88°15'44" WEST, ALONG SAID NORTH LINE, A DISTANCE OF 2.73 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 01°55'53" EAST, A
DISTANCE OF 661.73 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°26'44" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 662.24 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01°58'15"
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 659.62 FEET TO A POINT ON SAID NORTH LINE; THENCE NORTH 88°15'44" EAST, ALONG SAID
NORTH LINE, A DISTANCE OF 335.42 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 12; THENCE NORTH 01°50'35"
WEST, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 12, A DISTANCE OF 607.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID
LOT 12; THENCE NORTH 88°15'44" EAST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 12, A DISTANCE OF 330.00 FEET TO
THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 12; THENCE SOUTH 01°50'19" EAST, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 12,
A DISTANCE OF 607.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 637990.85  SQFT OR 14.65 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

PRECISION  1: 12885970.000 1. THE BASIS FOR THE BEARING SYSTEM FOR THIS PLAT IS THE KANSAS NORTH ZONE U.S.
STATE PLANE 1983, THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SEC 16-12S-22E
S01°53'36"E.
2. ALL DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE GROUND DISTANCES IN FEET.
3. FLOODPLAIN NOTE:  ACCORDING TO "FIRM" MAP COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBERS 20103C0350G
EFFECTIVE JULY 16, 2015, THIS PLAT IS LOCATED IN ZONES "X".
4. KS ONE WAS NOT CALLED
5. THE MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK FOR SINGLE FAMILY LOT SHALL BE 75 FEET ACCORDING
TO THE MORNING DEER FARM SUBDIVISION.
6. THE MINIMUM SIDE YARD SETBACK FOR SINGLE FAMILY LOT SHALL BE 15 FEET FROM EACH
SIDE OF STRUCTURE. DETACHED ACCESSORY STRUCTURES MAY BE BUILT WITHIN 15 FEET OF
THE SIDE PROPERTY LINE.
7. THE MINIMUM REAR YARD SETBACK FOR SINGLE FAMILY LOT SHALL BE 40 FEET FROM THE
STRUCTURE TO THE PROPERTY LINE. DETACHED ACCESSORY STRUCTURES MAY BE BUILT
WITHIN 15 FEET OF THE REAR PROPERTY LINE.
8. BENCHMARK - NGS KE1204 - ELV-1005.24
9. CURRENT USE - RESIDENTIAL / PROPOSED USE - RESIDENTIAL
10. CURRENT ZONING RR-2.5 / PROPOSED ZONING RR 2.5
11. ALL PROPOSED STRUCTURES WITHIN THIS PLAT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE LEAVENWORTH
COUNTY ZONING AND SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS.
12. ALL LOTS WILL BE ON SEPTIC SEWER SYSTEMS. AN ENGINEERED WASTE SYSTEM MAY BE
REQUIRED DUE TO POOR SOIL CONDITIONS.
13. TITLE COMMITMENT VIA MCCAFFREE-SHORT TITLE COMPANY -  FILE NO. L23-29427
14. EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE USED WHEN DESIGNING AND
CONSTRUCTION OF DRIVEWAYS AND OTHER STRUCTURES. RE-VEGETATION OF ALL DISTURBED
AREAS SHALL BE COMPLETED WITHIN 45 DAYS AFTER FINAL GRADING.
15. REFERENCED SURVEY

-MORNING DEER FARM SUBDIVISION BOOK 8, PAGE 18 NKA 1972P00018.
16. LOTS ARE SUBJECT TO THE CURRENT ACCESS MANAGEMENT POLICY.
17. THERE ARE NO OFF-PLAT RESTRICTIONS IN PLACE.
18. PROPERTY ACCESS VIA MORNING DEER ROAD.
19. AN EXCEPTION HAS BEEN GRATED FROM ARTICLE 50, SECTION 40.3.i. LOT-DEPTH TO
LOT-WIDTH FOR LOT 1.
20. ALL STRUCTURES BUILT WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION SHALL COMPLY WITH RESOLUTION
2020-39, OR AS AMENDED.

A REPLAT OF ALL OF LOT 12, MORNING DEER FARMS SUBDIVISION AND A TRACT OF LAND IN
THE NORTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 12 SOUTH, RANGE

22 EAST, OF THE 6TH P.M., IN LEAVENWORTH COUNTY, KANSAS

TREELINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14 MORNING DEER FARM SUBDIVISION PARCEL ID 2320900000022000 OWNER: ROGER E & VIRGINIA A LERTIZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12 MORNING DEER FARM SUBDIVISION PARCEL ID 2320900000021000 OWNER: MICHAEL E & BARBARA ANN BOSWORTH TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11 MORNING DEER FARM SUBDIVISION PARCEL ID 2320900000020000 OWNER: MICHAEL E & BARBARA ANN BOSWORTH TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10 MORNING DEER FARM SUBDIVISION PARCEL ID 2320900000019000 OWNER: WINSTON DUDLEY & DEBORAH ANN HAYNES

AutoCAD SHX Text
329.87'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
329.51'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 13 MORNING DEER FARM SUBDIVISION PARCEL ID 2320900000023000 OWNER: BENJAMIN I & KINSLEY K PISTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9 MORNING DEER FARM SUBDIVISION PARCEL ID 2320900000018000 OWNER: CYNTHIA S VERA TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD FILE : 

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/23/2023 11:27 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUSTIN THOMPSON



SE CORNER OF THE NW 1/4
SEC 16-12S-22E
FOUND 1/2" REBAR
1. 14.3' NW TO 60D NAIL & WASHER IN EAST FACE 30"

COTTONWOOD TREE
2. 25.6' SE TO TOP CENTERLINE SOUTH END OF CMP
3. 10.1' ENE TO TOP CENTERLINE NORTH END OF CMP
4. 76.5' E TO 60D NAIL IN SOUTH FACE OF POWER POLE
5. 26.1' NE TO CENTER OF 3" MAILBOX POST
6. 36.8' SW TO 60D NAIL & WASHER IN EAST FACE 16" MAPLE TREE
7. 12' NNW TO 1/2" REBAR LAYING FLAT

SW CORNER OF THE NW 1/4
SEC 16-12S-22E
FOUND 1/2" REBAR
1. 7.7' S TO 60D NAIL TOP FENCE POST
2. 0.9' W TO 60D NAIL TOP FENCE POST
3. 21.2' E TO 60D NAIL & LS-655 WASHER SOUTH FACE 16" OAK TREE

X

X
X

XXXXXXXX

FOUND 1/2" REBAR NO CAP
ORIGIN UNCERTAIN (HELD E/W,
6.05' NORTH OF SECTION LINE)

1
7

0
TH

 S
TR

EE
T

4
0

' R
/

W
 P

ER
 B

O
O

K
 D

, 
P

A
G

E 
3

3
2

, 
B

O
O

K
 J

,

P
A

G
E 

2
7

4
 A

N
D

 B
O

O
K

 4
7

6
, 

P
A

G
E 

1
0

9

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
NE CORNER OF THE NW 1/4
SEC 16-12S-22E
FOUND 1/2" REBAR
1. 51.2' NE TO FOUND PK NAIL & SHINER IN

WEST FACE OF GUARD POST FOR
TELEPHONE BOX

2. 42.75' SE TO FOUND NAIL IN NORTH FACE
OF POWER POLE

3. 41.4' W TO FOUND NAIL IN NORTH FACE
OF POWER POLE

4. 40.85' WSW TO FOUND PK NAIL & SHINER
IN TOP OF FENCE CORNER POST

5. 41.05' WSW TO FOUND PK NAIL & BOTTLE
CAP IN TOP OF FENCE CORNER POST

NW CORNER OF THE NW 1/4
SEC 16-12S-22E
FOUND 1/2" REBAR
1. 9.12' NNE TO 60D NAIL IN 4" OAK TREE
2. 19.94' NNW TO 60D NAIL IN 10" OAK TREE
3. 27.95' W TO 60D NAIL IN 10" HICKORY TREE

UNPLATTED
PARCEL ID

2351600000010000
OWNER:

COLE PETERSON

UNPLATTED
PARCEL ID

2351600000013000
OWNER:

PAUL R & JEAN E TRIGG TRUST

UNPLATTED
PARCEL ID

2351600000009000
OWNER:

DONALD G & VICTORIA L PARR

UNPLATTED
PARCEL ID

2351600000008000
OWNER:

DONALD G &
VICTORIA L PARR

UNPLATTED
PARCEL ID

2351600000007000
OWNER:

CYNTHIA S VERA TRUST

UNPLATTED
PARCEL ID

2351600000006000
OWNER:

JOSHUA CHARLES &
SARA KRISTINE PIERCE

UNPLATTED
PARCEL ID

2351600000005000
OWNER:

MICHAEL E & BARBARA
ANN BOSWORTH TRUST

UNPLATTED
PARCEL ID

2351600000004000
OWNER:

MARK E & CHERYL L ROSS

LOT 1
BOSWORTH ADDITION

PARCEL ID
2351600000043000

OWNER:
MICHAEL E & BARBARA ANN

BOSWORTH TRUST
PER BOOK 555 PAGE 360

ROAD EASEMENT PER BOOK 555 PAGE 360 (PRIVATE DRIVE)

FOUND 1/2" CAP
1/2" REBAR CAP
CFS CLS80(3.44'
WEST AND 7.24'

SOUTH OF
CORNER)

FOUND 1" SQUARE HEAD
BOLT ORIGIN UNCERTAIN
(HELD E/W & 7.27'
NORTH OF CORNER)

FOUND 1/2" REBAR NO
CAP ORIGIN UNCERTAIN
(HELD)

FOUND 1/2" CAP
1/2" REBAR CAP
CFS CLS80(8.53'
SOUTH OF CORNER)

FOUND 1/2" REBAR NO
CAP ORIGIN UNCERTAIN
(2.91' E & 3.93' N OF
CORNER)

FOUND 1/2" REBAR NO
CAP ORIGIN UNCERTAIN
(HELD E/W, 8.75' NORTH
OF SECTION LINE)

FOUND 1/2" REBAR NO
CAP ORIGIN UNCERTAIN
(7.21' NORTH OF
SECTION LINE)

FOUND 1/2" REBAR
NO CAP ORIGIN

UNCERTAIN (3.27'
SOUTH OF

SECTION LINE)

ROAD EASEMENT PER BOOK 555 PAGE 360 (PRIVATE DRIVE)

LOT 1
637990.85 SQ FT +/-

14.65 ACRES +/-

8' U/E

20' U/E

8'
 U

/E

8'
 U

/E

75' B/L

40
' B

/L

40
' B

/L

40
' B

/L

40
' B

/L

15' B/L

40' B/L

MORNING DEER RD
60' R/W PER PLAT MORNING DEER FARM

SUBDIVISION
60' R/W

POINT OF
BEGINNING

30' TO CL

FOUND 1/2" REBAR CAP
ALC KS CLS 363 MO CLS
2022014231

20' U/E

20
' U

/E

20
' U

/E

FOUND 1/2" REBAR CAP
ALC KS CLS 363 MO CLS

2022014231

FOUND 1/2" REBAR CAP
ALC KS CLS 363 MO CLS
2022014231

FOUND 1/2" REBAR CAP
ALC KS CLS 363 MO CLS

2022014231

FOUND 1/2" REBAR CAP
ALC KS CLS 363 MO CLS

2022014231
FOUND 1/2" REBAR CAP
ALC KS CLS 363 MO CLS
2022014231

FENCE

UNPLATTED
PARCEL ID

2351600000012000
OWNER:

MICHAEL E & BARBARA
ANN BOSWORTH TRUST

GENERAL NOTES

DATE

PREPARED FOR

SEC-TWN-RNG

VICINITY MAP

SCALE

LEGEND

SEPTEMBER 20TH, 2023

16-12S-22E

BARBARA & MICHAEL BOSWORTH

FINAL PLAT

This is to certify on this 27TH day of JULY, 2023 this field survey was
completed on the ground by me or under my direct supervision and that
said survey meets or exceeds the "Kansas Minimum Standards" for
boundary surveys.

ROGER B. DILL LS 1408

S:\Atlas Land Consulting\2023\23-224 Bosworth Phase 2\Bosworth Addition No.2.dwg

JOB NO:23-224

SECTION 16-12S-22E
Not to Scale

NE 1/4NW 1/4

SW 1/4

Project
Location

1. THE BASIS FOR THE BEARING SYSTEM FOR THIS PLAT IS THE KANSAS NORTH ZONE U.S.
STATE PLANE 1983, THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SEC 16-12S-22E
S01°53'36"E.
2. ALL DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE GROUND DISTANCES IN FEET.
3. FLOODPLAIN NOTE:  ACCORDING TO "FIRM" MAP COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBERS 20103C0350G
EFFECTIVE JULY 16, 2015, THIS PLAT IS LOCATED IN ZONES "X".
4. KS ONE WAS NOT CALLED
5. THE MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK FOR SINGLE FAMILY LOT SHALL BE 75 FEET ACCORDING
TO THE MORNING DEER FARM SUBDIVISION.
6. THE MINIMUM SIDE YARD SETBACK FOR SINGLE FAMILY LOT SHALL BE 15 FEET FROM EACH
SIDE OF STRUCTURE. DETACHED ACCESSORY STRUCTURES MAY BE BUILT WITHIN 15 FEET OF
THE SIDE PROPERTY LINE.
7. THE MINIMUM REAR YARD SETBACK FOR SINGLE FAMILY LOT SHALL BE 40 FEET FROM THE
STRUCTURE TO THE PROPERTY LINE. DETACHED ACCESSORY STRUCTURES MAY BE BUILT
WITHIN 15 FEET OF THE REAR PROPERTY LINE.
8. BENCHMARK - NGS KE1204 - ELV-1005.24
9. CURRENT USE - RESIDENTIAL / PROPOSED USE - RESIDENTIAL
10. CURRENT ZONING RR-2.5 / PROPOSED ZONING RR 2.5
11. ALL PROPOSED STRUCTURES WITHIN THIS PLAT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE LEAVENWORTH
COUNTY ZONING AND SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS.
12. ALL LOTS WILL BE ON SEPTIC SEWER SYSTEMS. AN ENGINEERED WASTE SYSTEM MAY BE
REQUIRED DUE TO POOR SOIL CONDITIONS.
13. TITLE COMMITMENT VIA MCCAFFREE-SHORT TITLE COMPANY -  FILE NO. L23-29427
14. EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE USED WHEN DESIGNING AND
CONSTRUCTION OF DRIVEWAYS AND OTHER STRUCTURES. RE-VEGETATION OF ALL DISTURBED
AREAS SHALL BE COMPLETED WITHIN 45 DAYS AFTER FINAL GRADING.
15. REFERENCED SURVEY

-MORNING DEER FARM SUBDIVISION BOOK 8, PAGE 18 NKA 1972P00018.
-BOSWORTH ADDITION DOC #: 2023P00033

16. LOTS ARE SUBJECT TO THE CURRENT ACCESS MANAGEMENT POLICY.
17. PROPERTY ACCESS VIA MORNING DEER ROAD.
18. AN EXCEPTION HAS BEEN GRATED FROM ARTICLE 50, SECTION 40.3.i. LOT-DEPTH TO
LOT-WIDTH FOR LOT 1.
19. ALL STRUCTURES BUILT WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION SHALL COMPLY WITH RESOLUTION
2020-39, OR AS AMENDED.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the undersigned proprietor has caused this instrument to be executed
this                      day of                                        , 202_.

OWNER

______________________________
MICHAEL E BOSWORTH TRUSTEE, MICHAEL E & BARBARA ANN BOSWORTH TRUST

_________________________________
BARBARA ANN BOSWORTH TRUSTEE, MICHAEL E & BARBARA ANN BOSWORTH TRUST

STATE OF KANSAS)
 )SS

COUNTY OF LEAVENWORTH)

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this  day of , 202_, before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, came
MICHAEL E BOSWORTH TRUSTEE AND BARBARA ANN BOSWORTH TRUSTEE OF MICHAEL E & BARBARA ANN BOSWORTH
TRUST,to me personally known to be the same person who executed the foregoing instrument of writing and duly acknowledged the
execution of the same.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial seal the day and year above written.

My Commission Expires:

Notary Public

The County Engineer's plat review is only for general conformance with the subdivision regulations as
adopted by Leavenworth County.  The County is not responsible for the accuracy or adequacy of the
design, dimensions, elevations, and quantities.

 COUNTY ENGINEER, MITCH PLEAK

This is to certify that this instrument was filed for record in the Register of Deeds
office on the                       day of                               , 2023, in Book       , Page       .

REGISTER OF DEEDS, TERRILOIS G. MASHBURN

I hereby certify this plat meets the requirements of K.S.A. 58-2005.  The face of this plat was
reviewed for compliance with Kansas Minimum Standards for Boundary surveys.  No field verification
is implied.  This review is for survey information only.

LEAVENWORTH COUNTY SURVEYOR
DANIEL BAUMCHEN, PS-1363

DESCRIPTION
BOOK 602, PAGE 1075
THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTH HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 12, RANGE 22, LESS
THAT PART USED FOR PUBLIC ROAD.

BOOK 536 PAGE 240
LOT TWELVE (12), MORNING DEER FARMS SUBDIVISION, LEAVENWORTH COUNTY, KANSAS.

SURVEYORS SUGGESTED
ALL OF LOT 12, MORNING DEER FARMS SUBDIVISION AND A TRACT OF LAND IN THE NORTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF
SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 12 SOUTH, RANGE 22 EAST, OF THE 6TH P.M., IN LEAVENWORTH COUNTY, KANSAS, PREPARED BY ROGER B. DILL PS
1408 ON SEPTEMBER 20TH, 2023; BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 88°15'44" WEST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF
SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 662.69 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 12, ALSO KNOWN TO BE THE POINT OF
BEGINNING OF HEREIN DESCRIBED TRACT; THENCE SOUTH 88°15'44" WEST, ALONG SAID NORTH LINE, A DISTANCE OF 2.73 FEET; THENCE
SOUTH 01°55'53" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 661.73 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°26'44" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 662.24 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01°58'15"
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 659.62 FEET TO A POINT ON SAID NORTH LINE; THENCE NORTH 88°15'44" EAST, ALONG SAID NORTH LINE, A DISTANCE
OF 335.42 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 12; THENCE NORTH 01°50'35" WEST, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 12, A
DISTANCE OF 607.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 12; THENCE NORTH 88°15'44" EAST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID
LOT 12, A DISTANCE OF 330.00 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 12; THENCE SOUTH 01°50'19" EAST, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF
SAID LOT 12, A DISTANCE OF 607.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 637990.85 SQFT OR 14.65 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

PRECISION  1: 12885970.000
B/L
U/E

SE 1/4

17
0T

H
 S

TR
EE

T

LORING ROAD

BOSWORTH ADDITION NO. 2
 A REPLAT OF ALL OF LOT 12, MORNING DEER FARMS SUBDIVISION AND A TRACT OF LAND IN

THE NORTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 12 SOUTH, RANGE
22 EAST, OF THE 6TH P.M., IN LEAVENWORTH COUNTY, KANSAS

UTILITIES
EVERGY - 800-383-1183
RURAL WATER DISTRICT 7 - 913-856-7375

16
6T

H
 S

TR
EE

T

This plat of BOSWORTH ADDITION  has been submitted and approved by Leavenworth County
Planning Commission, this                       day of                                         , 202_.

CHAIRMAN  - MARCUS MAJURE                  

SECRETARY - JOHN JACOBSON

This plat approved by the Board of County Commissioners of Leavenworth County, Kansas, this
day of                                         , 202_.

(SEAL)

         
 CHAIRMAN - Vicky Kaaz ATTEST - COUNTY CLERK - JANET KLASINSKI

DEDICATION
The undersigned proprietor of the above described tract of land has caused the same to be subdivided in the manner as shown on the
accompanying plat, which subdivision and plat shall hereafter be known as "BOSWORTH ADDITION".

The streets and roads shown on this plat and not heretofore dedicated to public use, are hereby so dedicated by easement.

The undersigned proprietor of the above described tract of land does hereby certify that all prior existing easement rights on land to be
dedicated for the public use running to any person, utility, or corporation have been absolved except that same person, utility or corporation
shall retain whatever rights they would have as if located in a public street.

An easement or license to enter upon, locate, construct and maintain or authorize the location, construction, or maintenance and use of
conduits, water, gas, electrical, sewer pipes, poles, wires, drainage facilities, ducts and cables, and similar utility facilities upon, over, and
under these areas outlined and designated on this plat as "Utility Easement" or "U/E", is hereby granted to the Leavenworth County, Kansas,
and other governmental entities as may be authorized by state law to use such easement for said purposes.

"Drainage Easements" or "D/E" shown on this plat are hereby dedicated for the purpose of constructing, using replacing and maintaining a
culvert, storm sewer, drainage ditch, or other drainage facility or tributary connections, including similar facilities, and appurtenances thereto,
including the right to maintain, repair and replace the drainage facility and for any reconstruction and future expansion of such facility,
together with the right of access for the same, is hereby dedicated for public use. Drainage Easements shall be kept clear of obstructions that
impair the strength or interfere with the use and/or maintenance of storm drainage facilities. The maintenance and upkeep of said Easements
hall be the responsibility of the individual owners of the lots whereupon said Easements are dedicated. Leaveworth County shall bear no
responsibility for any maintenance and upkeep of said Easements.

The use of all lots in this subdivision shall hereafter be subject to the restrictions which will be executed as a separate instrument of writing
and will be recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Leavenworth County, Kansas, said restrictions will thereby be made a part of the
dedication of this plat as though fully set forth herein. RECORDED: DATE                  BOOK_______PAGE_______

Building Lines are hereby established as shown on the accompanying plat and no building or portion thereof shall be built or constructed
between this line and the street line.

Theory of Location:
It is evident, per deeds and occupation lines, that the parcels in the North half of the  Northwest Quarter were divided with the intent of
following the un-filed plat of "Morning Deer Farm Subdivision, First Addition". The breakdown of said North half, using the section corners as
they sit today, does not work with said un-filed plat. In an effort to not create gaps or gores, we are holding the sectional breakdown, as it
exists today, for the North, West and South lines of said North Half. For the interior breakdown of said North half, we are holding monuments
that match said un-filed plat.

We also found two bars that represent the South line of the North half of said North Half (+/- 660 feet from the North line of said Northwest
Quarter), we are not holding those bars due to those not meeting the intent of said un-filed plat.

DENOTES FOUND MONUMENT AS NOTED
DENOTES SET 1/2" REBAR IN CONCRETE WITH
CAP ALC KS CLS 363 MO CLS 2022014231
DENOTES FOUND PROPERTY CORNER AS NOTED
BUILDING LINE
UTILITY EASEMENT

ADDRESS: 17161 MORNING DEER RD,
LINWOOD, KS 66052

SECTION 09-12S-22E
09

16

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14 MORNING DEER FARM SUBDIVISION PARCEL ID 2320900000022000 OWNER: ROGER E & VIRGINIA A LERTIZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12 MORNING DEER FARM SUBDIVISION PARCEL ID 2320900000021000 OWNER: MICHAEL E & BARBARA ANN BOSWORTH TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11 MORNING DEER FARM SUBDIVISION PARCEL ID 2320900000020000 OWNER: MICHAEL E & BARBARA ANN BOSWORTH TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10 MORNING DEER FARM SUBDIVISION PARCEL ID 2320900000019000 OWNER: WINSTON DUDLEY & DEBORAH ANN HAYNES

AutoCAD SHX Text
329.87'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
329.51'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 13 MORNING DEER FARM SUBDIVISION PARCEL ID 2320900000023000 OWNER: BENJAMIN I & KINSLEY K PISTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9 MORNING DEER FARM SUBDIVISION PARCEL ID 2320900000018000 OWNER: CYNTHIA S VERA TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD FILE : 

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/23/2023 11:27 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUSTIN THOMPSON



1

Johnson, Melissa

From: Austin Thompson <austin@alconsult-llc.com>
Sent: Thursday, September 28, 2023 11:22 AM
To: Johnson, Melissa
Cc: PZ; Andrea Weishaubt; Tyler Thomposon; Michael & Barbara Bosworth
Subject: Re: Bosworth Addition No. 2
Attachments: Preliminary Plat Application.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 
 
Melissa  
 
Please see attached utility approvals and preliminary application. I believe the owner will be by with a check for the 
application fee. 
 
Thanks 

 
 
On Wed, Sep 27, 2023 at 12:21 PM Johnson, Melissa <MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov> wrote: 

Austin, 

  

I see that Stephanie gave you the application for the preliminary plat.  I see that the payment of $525.00, the hard copy 
of both the pre and final plat, utility responses and the prelim application is needed to complete the application.  I 
know we spoke on the phone but I promised you a list of all necessary items still needed. 

  



This Message Is From an External Sender

This message came from outside your organiza�on. Please take care when clicking links or
opening a�achments. When in doubt, use the Report Phish bu�on or contact IT to have the
message analyzed.

From:                                         Mitch Pleak
Sent:                                           Thursday, October 26, 2023 2:16 PM
To:                                               Johnson, Melissa
Cc:                                               Noll, Bill; McAfee, Joe; Terry Parsons
Subject:                                     RE: DEV-23-134 & 23-135 Preliminary and Final Plat Bosworth

Addi�on No 2, Atlas
A�achments:                          Bosworth Addi�on No.2 Preliminary Plat-24X36.pdf; Bosworth 2

Drainage Study (Rev1).pdf; Bosworth Addi�on No.2 Final Plat-
24X36.pdf

 
No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Melissa,
Good a�ernoon.  The PP and FP have been reviewed with no comments.  The drainage report has
comments.  Reviews are a�ached.
 
Thanks,
 
Mitch Pleak
 
From: Aus�n Thompson <aus�n@alconsult-llc.com> 
Sent: Thursday, October 26, 2023 7:56 AM
To: Johnson, Melissa <MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Cc: Noll, Bill <BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov>; McAfee, Joe <JMcAfee@leavenworthcounty.gov>;
PZ <PZ@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com>
Subject: Re: DEV-23-134 & 23-135 Preliminary and Final Plat Bosworth Addi�on No 2, Atlas
 
Melissa Please see a�ached updates. Do you know when the mee�ng is? Thanks On Mon, Oct 23, 2023 at 8: 34 AM Johnson, Melissa <MJohnson@ leavenworthcounty. gov> wrote: Aus�n, I think this is what you’re looking for. Thanks, Melissa Johnson
ZjQcmQRYFpfptBannerStart

ZjQcmQRYFpfptBannerEnd

Melissa
 
Please see a�ached updates. Do you know when the mee�ng is?
 
Thanks
 
On Mon, Oct 23, 2023 at 8:34 AM Johnson, Melissa <MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov> wrote:

 Aus�n,
 
I think this is what you’re looking for.
 
Thanks,
 
Melissa Johnson
Planner I
Leavenworth County
Planning & Zoning Department

mailto:mpleak@olsson.com
mailto:MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JMcAfee@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:tparsons@olsson.com
mailto:MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov


MEMO 

 
To: Amy Allison 

From: Chuck Magaha 

Subject: Bosworth Addition  

Date: November 2, 2023 

  

  

 
 
 
 

Amy, I have reviewed the preliminary plat of the Bosworth Addition  Subdivision 
presented by Michael and Barbra Bosworth.  The subdivision meets the requirements for a fire 
hydrant and supported with a 6" water line as stated in the subdivision guidelines. The area in 
which the subdivision is proposed has a fire hydrant along the right-a-away on 170th on the 
property line that will meet the requirements for this subdivision. 

I have no further recommendation for this subdivision.  
 
 If you have any questions please call me 684-0455. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bosworth Corner 



1

Johnson, Melissa

From: Anderson, Kyle
Sent: Monday, October 2, 2023 11:31 AM
To: Johnson, Melissa
Subject: RE: DEV-23-134 & 23-135 Preliminary and Final Plat Bosworth Addition No 2, Atlas 

We have not received any complaints on these properties, and we are not aware of any septic systems currently 
installed on them.  
 
 
Kyle Anderson 
Environmental Technician/Code Enforcement 
Leavenworth County Planning & Zoning 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 
Leavenworth, KS 66048 
913-684-1084 
 
Disclaimer: This message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the recipient or their authorized representative. The information 
provided in this email is limited in scope and response detail by available information, current zoning and subdivision regulations. Depending on the 
level of development, the applicable regulations can change. Final approval cannot be granted until a complete application has been submitted, 
reviewed and approved by the governing body.   Nothing in this message or its contents should be interpreted to authorize or conclude approval by 
Leavenworth County.  
 

From: Johnson, Melissa <MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov>  
Sent: Friday, September 29, 2023 2:46 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <cmagaha@lvsheriff.org>; Miller, Jamie <JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua 
<jpatzwald@lvsheriff.org>; Van Parys, David <DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'MPleak@olsson.com' 
<MPleak@olsson.com>; Noll, Bill <BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Baumchen, Daniel 
<DBaumchen@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Cc: PZ <PZ@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: DEV-23-134 & 23-135 Preliminary and Final Plat Bosworth Addition No 2, Atlas  
 
The Leavenworth County Department of Planning & Zoning has received a request for a Preliminary and Final Plat for 
Bosworth Addition No 2, Atlas. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request.  Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by Thursday, October 
5th, 2023. 
 
If you have any questions, or need additional information, please contact us at (913) 684-0465 or at 
pz@leavenworthcounty.gov 
 
Thank you,  
 

Melissa Johnson 
Planner I 
Leavenworth County 
Planning & Zoning Department 
Leavenworth County Courthouse 



LEAVENWORTH COUNTY 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

STAFF REPORT 
CASE NO: DEV-23-144 GOODNESS & MERCY FARMS                                               November 8, 2023 
      REPLAT OF VALLEY VIEW SUBDIVISION LOTS 2 & 3 

REQUEST: Consent Agenda  

◻ Preliminary Plat                Final Plat 

 x   Replat                

STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
JOHN JACOBSON 
DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT PROPERTY: 17724 246TH St., Tonganoxie, KS 66086, Valley View 
Subdivision, Lots 2 & 3. 

 

APPLICANT/APPLICANT AGENT: 
JOE HERRING 
HERRING SURVEYING 

PROPERTY OWNER: 
SONIA TANN 
10204 WEST 54TH TERR 
TONGANOXIE, KS 66086 

CONCURRENT APPLICATIONS: 
NONE 

LAND USE 

ZONING: RR 5 

FUTURE LAND USE: 
RURAL RESIDENTIAL 2.5 ACRES   

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  
TRACT I: Lot 2, FINAL PLAT VALLEY VIEW, a tract of land in the South Half of the 
Northeast Quarter, Section 14, Township 11 South, Range 20 East of the 6th 
P.M., in Leavenworth County Kansas. 
TRACT II: Lot 3, FINAL PLAT VALLEY VIEW, a tract of land in the South Half of 
the Northeast Quarter, Section 14, Township 11 South, Range 20 East of the 
6th P.M., in Leavenworth County Kansas. 

SUBDIVISION: VALLEY VIEW LOT 2/3 

FLOODPLAIN: N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL PROPERTY INFORMATION 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-23-144 RE-Plat for GOODNESS 

AND MERCY FARMS, to the Board of County Commission, with or 
without conditions; or 

2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-23-144 RE-Plat for GOODNESS 
AND MERCY FARMS, to the Board of County Commission for the 
following reasons; or  

3. Continue the hearing to another date, time, and place. 

PARCEL SIZE:  
10 Acres 

PARCEL ID NO:  
206-14-0-00-00-012.00 & 013.00 

BUILDINGS: N/A 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY: 
Request for a Re-plat approval to join the property located at 00000 246th 
Street & 17724 246th Street (206-14-0-00-00-012.00 & 011.00) as Lots 1 of 
GOODNESS AND MERCY FARMS REPLAT OF VALLEY VIEW LOT 2 & 3. 

ACCESS/STREET: 
246TH STREET - COUNTY COLLECTOR, 
PAVED ± 24’; 

Location Map: 

 
 

UTILITIES 

SEWER: PRIVATE SEPTIC SYSTEM 

FIRE: TONGANOXIE 

WATER: RWD 13 

ELECTRIC: FREESTATE 

NOTICE & REVIEW: 

STAFF REVIEW:  
10/19/2023 

NEWSPAPER NOTIFICATION: 
N/A 

NOTICE TO SURROUNDING 
PROPERTY OWNERS:  

N/A 

 



STANDARDS TO BE CONSIDERED:  

Leavenworth County Zoning and Subdivision Standards: Preliminary Review Met Not Met 

35-40 Preliminary Plat Content N/A  

 

40-20 Final Plat Content X  

 

41-6 Access Management X  

 

41-6.B.a-c. Entrance Spacing X  

 

41-6.C. Public Road Access Management Standards X  

 

43 Cross Access Easements N/A  

 

50-20 Utility Requirements X  

 

50-30 Other Requirements X  

 

50-40 Minimum Design Standards X  

 

50-50 Sensitive Land Development N/A  

 

50-60. Dedication of Reservation of Public Sites and Open Spaces N/A  

 

STAFF COMMENTS: 

The applicant is proposing to replat two previously platted 4.70-acre parcels into one approximately-10-acre lot. The Subdivision is 

classified as a Class C with all lots lying within the Rural Growth Area of Leavenworth County. Staff is supportive of a waiver of the 

requirement to connect to a sanitary sewer system as sanitary sewers are not located within 660’ of the subdivision (see condition 1).  

Lots 1 will be approximately 10 acres in size. The lot meets the requirements for the RR-2.5 zoning district. The platted access points 

meet the Access Management Policy. Staff is generally in support. 

PROPOSED CONDITIONS: 

1. Building permits shall be required for any new construction. 

2. Erosion control shall be used when designing and constructing driveways.  A form of sediment control shall be installed before 

work begins and maintained throughout the time that the land disturbing activities are taking place.  Re-vegetation of all disturbed 

sites shall be completed within 45 days after completion of final grading weather permitting. 

3. A waiver for the use of private septic systems within this subdivision is granted with this approval. 

4. At time of development, fire hydrants shall be required, if necessary infrastructure is available. 

5. The developer must comply with the following memorandums/emails: 

a. Email – Amanda Tarwater, FreeState, dated October 20, 2023 

b. Email -  RWD 13, - NO RESPONSE 

c. Email – Timothy Smith, Tonganoxie FD, dated October 19, 2023 

d. Email – Mitch Pleak, Olsson, dated October 20, 2023 

e. Email – Daniel Baumchen, County Surveyor, dated October 31,2023 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

A: Application 

B: Narrative 

C: Memorandums 





1

Sloop, Stephanie

From: Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com>

Sent: Friday, October 27, 2023 6:51 AM

To: Johnson, Melissa

Cc: Noll, Bill; McAfee, Joe; PZ

Subject: RE: DEV-23-144, Goodness and Mercy Farm Replat of Valley View Lot 2&3

Attachments: K-23-1723 Tann FINAL GOODNESS MERCY Rev 10-26-23.pdf

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Melissa, 
The FP has been reviewed.  No comment.  Review is attached. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Mitch Pleak 
 

From: Joe Herring <herringsurveying@outlook.com>  
Sent: Thursday, October 26, 2023 9:57 AM 
To: Johnson, Melissa <MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Cc: Noll, Bill <BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov>; McAfee, Joe <JMcAfee@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Mitch Pleak 
<mpleak@olsson.com>; Baumchen, Daniel <DBaumchen@leavenworthcounty.gov>; PZ <PZ@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: Re: DEV-23-144, Goodness and Mercy Farm Replat of Valley View Lot 2&3 
 
Please see attac hed revisions and com ments b elow: PZ Comments BS L requests to show linework. Hist orically the Front B. S.  L. is shown other linework is n oted her eon - did not show additional linework. Entrance - Hatchi ng is per the rec orded plat  

ZjQcmQRYFp fptBa nnerStart 

 

This Message Is From an External Sender  

This message came from outside your organization. Please take care when clicking links or opening attachments. 
When in doubt, use the Report Phish button or contact IT to have the message analyzed.  

 

ZjQcmQRYFp fptBa nnerEnd 

Please see attached revisions and comments below: 
 
PZ Comments 
BSL requests to show linework.  Historically the Front B.S.L. is shown other linework is noted hereon - did not 
show additional linework. 
 
Entrance - Hatching is per the recorded plat that was accepted last year. 
 
Survey Comments: 
Item No. 2 - Right of way line and new calculations with right of way - are we stating that the Road is Fee 
Simple and should not be included in the property.  If so, it appears that the previous plat included the right of 
way in their 5 acre lots (zone 5 acres).  Please advise. 
 
  
Thank you - Joe Herring 

__________________________________ 



From:                                         Amanda Tarwater
Sent:                                           Friday, October 20, 2023 2:49 PM
To:                                               Johnson, Melissa
Subject:                                     RE: DEV-23-144, Goodness and Mercy Farm Replat of Valley View Lot

2&3
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
FreeState has no objec�on to this request.
 
Side note: Ms. Tann has reached out a few months ago to establish service to a home they
plan/or are building here. We gave her es�mates and haven’t heard anything back.
 

Amanda Tarwater
Member Accounts Coordinator

 

1-800-794-1989 | www.freestate.coop

From: Johnson, Melissa <MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 17, 2023 11:51 AM
To: Magaha, Chuck <cmagaha@lvsheriff.org>; Anderson, Kyle
<KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Miller, Jamie <JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>;
Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@lvsheriff.org>; Van Parys, David
<DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Brown, Misty <MBrown@leavenworthcounty.gov>;
'mpleak@olsson.com' <mpleak@olsson.com>; Noll, Bill <BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov>;
'Chief1860@�rfd.com' <Chief1860@�rfd.com>; Amanda Tarwater
<amanda.tarwater@freestate.coop>; 'niki@jfrwd13.com' <niki@jfrwd13.com>;
'jeffrwd13@hughes.net' <jeffrwd13@hughes.net>
Cc: PZ <PZ@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: DEV-23-144, Goodness and Mercy Farm Replat of Valley View Lot 2&3
 
 

Warning: This message originated outside of the FEC organiza�on. Do not click links or open
a�achments unless you have validated the sender and know the content is safe. <=""
span="">

The Department of Planning & Zoning has received an applica�on regarding Goodness and Mercy
Farms a Replat of Valley View Sub., Lot 2 & 3.
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request. 
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by October 25, 2023.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0465 or
at pz@leavenworthcounty.gov .
 
Thank you,

mailto:amanda.tarwater@freestate.coop
mailto:MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:pz@leavenworthcounty.gov


From:                                         Timothy Smith

Sent:                                           Thursday, October 19, 2023 11:02 AM

To:                                               Johnson, Melissa

Subject:                                     Re: DEV-23-144, Goodness and Mercy Farm Replat of Valley View Lot
2&3

 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.

 

The Tonganoxie Township Fire Department has no issues with this request.

 

On Tue, Oct 17, 2023 at 11:51 AM Johnson, Melissa <MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov> wrote:

The Department of Planning & Zoning has received an applica�on regarding Goodness and
Mercy Farms a Replat of Valley View Sub., Lot 2 & 3.

 

The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request. 
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by October 25, 2023.

 

If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0465
or at pz@leavenworthcounty.gov .

 

Thank you,

 

Melissa Johnson

Planner I

Leavenworth County

Planning & Zoning Department

Leavenworth County Courthouse

300 Walnut St, Suite 212

Leavenworth County, Kansas 66048

(913) 684-0465

 

mailto:chief1860@ttrfd.com
mailto:MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:pz@leavenworthcounty.gov


From:                                         Anderson, Kyle
Sent:                                           Tuesday, October 17, 2023 12:43 PM
To:                                               Johnson, Melissa
Subject:                                     RE: DEV-23-144, Goodness and Mercy Farm Replat of Valley View Lot

2&3
 

Prior to the applicant taking ownership of the proper�es, it was discovered that plas�c culverts
were installed on the permi�ed entrances. A viola�on le�er was sent out and the culverts were
replaced with galvanized steel as required. There are no current viola�ons on these proper�es.
 
Kyle Anderson
Environmental Technician/Code Enforcement
Leavenworth County Planning & Zoning
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212
Leavenworth, KS 66048
913-684-1084
 
Disclaimer: This message and any a�achments are intended only for the use of the recipient or their authorized
representa�ve. The informa�on provided in this email is limited in scope and response detail by available informa�on,
current zoning and subdivision regula�ons. Depending on the level of development, the applicable regula�ons can
change. Final approval cannot be granted un�l a complete applica�on has been submi�ed, reviewed and approved by
the governing body.   Nothing in this message or its contents should be interpreted to authorize or conclude approval by
Leavenworth County.
 
From: Johnson, Melissa <MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 17, 2023 11:51 AM
To: Magaha, Chuck <cmagaha@lvsheriff.org>; Anderson, Kyle
<KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Miller, Jamie <JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>;
Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@lvsheriff.org>; Van Parys, David
<DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Brown, Misty <MBrown@leavenworthcounty.gov>;
'mpleak@olsson.com' <mpleak@olsson.com>; Noll, Bill <BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov>;
'Chief1860@�rfd.com' <Chief1860@�rfd.com>; 'amanda.holloway@freestate.coop'
<amanda.holloway@freestate.coop>; 'niki@jfrwd13.com' <niki@jfrwd13.com>;
'jeffrwd13@hughes.net' <jeffrwd13@hughes.net>
Cc: PZ <PZ@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: DEV-23-144, Goodness and Mercy Farm Replat of Valley View Lot 2&3
 
The Department of Planning & Zoning has received an applica�on regarding Goodness and Mercy
Farms a Replat of Valley View Sub., Lot 2 & 3.
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request. 
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by October 25, 2023.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0465 or
at pz@leavenworthcounty.gov .
 
Thank you,
 

Melissa Johnson
Planner I
Leavenworth County
Planning & Zoning Department
Leavenworth County Courthouse

mailto:KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:pz@leavenworthcounty.gov


      LEAVENWORTH COUNTY 
      PLANNING COMMISSION 

STAFF REPORT 
 

CASE NO: DEV-23-136 SUP – Contractors Yard – Tri-Hull Crane Rental                                                 November 8, 2023 

REQUEST: Public Hearing Required 

☐ Zoning Amendment                 ☒ Special Use Permit 

☐ Temporary Special Use Permit 

STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
JOHN JACOBSON 
DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT PROPERTY: 24838 LORING ROAD 

 

APPLICANT/APPLICANT AGENT: 
DEE HULL 
TRI-HULL CRANE RENTAL 
24838 LORING RD 
LAWRENCE, KS 66044 

PROPERTY OWNER: 
TRI-HULL LLC 

CONCURRENT APPLICATIONS: 
N/A 

LAND USE 

ZONING: RR-5 

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION: 
RESIDENTIAL 2.5 acre minimum 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
A tract of land located in the Southeast Quarter of Section 11, Township 12 
South, Range 20 East of the 6th P.M., Leavenworth County, Kansas 

SUBDIVISION: N/A 

FLOODPLAIN: N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS PROPERTY INFORMATION 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-23-136 , Special Use Permit for 

Tri-Hull LLC for a Special Use Contractor Yard, to the Board of County 
Commission, with or without conditions; or 

2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-23-136 , Special Use Permit for 
Tri-Hull LLC for a Special Use Contractor Yard, to the Board of County 
Commission for the following reasons; or  

3. Continue the hearing to another date, time, and place. 

PARCEL SIZE: +- 39.70 ACRES  

PARCEL ID NO:  
211-11-0-00-00-017.02 

BUILDINGS: Three 
EXISTING: Manufactured Home and 
two accessory buildings.  

PROJECT SUMMARY: 
The applicant is requesting a ten-year extension of a Special Use Permit for 
Contractor’s Yard for Tri-Hull Crane Rental. This request is not in conformance 
with LVCO BOCC Resolution 2020-25 (PID 211-11-0-00-00-017.02). 

ACCESS/STREET: 
147TH STREET - COUNTY COLLECTOR 
±22’ WIDE, PAVED/GRAVEL/DIRT 

 Location Map: 

 
 
 

UTILITIES 

SEWER: SEPTIC 

FIRE: RENO 

WATER: N/A 

ELECTRIC: EVERGY 

NOTICE & REVIEW: 

STAFF REVIEW: 10/12/2023 

NEWSPAPER NOTIFICATION: 
10/18/2023 

NOTICE TO SURROUNDING 
PROPERTY OWNERS: 

10/18/2023 



FACTORS TO BE CONSIDERED: 

The following factors are to be considered by the Planning Commission and the 
Board of County Commissioners when approving or disapproving this Special Use 
Permit request: 

Met Not Met 

1. Character of the Neighborhood: 
Density:  Surrounding properties are residences and farms from 1 to 140 acres 
in size.  
 
 

 

✓  

2. Zoning and uses of nearby property: 
Adjacent Uses: Most of the adjacent parcels are residential and agricultural in 
nature.  
 

Adjacent Zoning: All adjacent properties are zoned RR-5  

✓  

3. Suitability of the Property for the uses to which is has been restricted: 
The property is currently operating under an existing SUP. The property is 
suitable as a rural residence, for agricultural uses and the proposed use is 
restricted by previous BOCC action to a maximum term of 2 additional years.  

✓  

4. Extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby 
property:   

The use is likely to detrimentally impact neighboring parcels as a long-term use. 
This use is industrial in nature and should as a long-term solution, be located in 
an appropriately zoned district. 
   

 
✓ 

 

Traffic: Traffic to the site will be limited to six employees and the haul route for 
the cranes themselves. All business traffic will be limited to 24/40. A drainage 
structure assessment shall be completed per the traffic impact policy  

✓ 
(Condition 4) 

 

Lighting: The applicant indicated no use of exterior lighting.  
✓ 
 

 

Outdoor Storage:  Outdoor storage will be significant as the intention is to house 
all equipment outdoors. Screening is existing. 
 

✓ 

 
 

Parking: Parking is provided and is adequate for the proposed use.  
 

✓ 
 

 

Visitors/Employees: Typically, six staff will visit the site each day. Customers will 
not frequent the site. 
 

✓  

Waste: Any waste generated from the property must be disposed of in 
compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws. 

✓ 
(Condition 12) 

 

5. Length of time the property has been vacant as zoned: 

☐Vacant: To our knowledge, the property has never been developed. There is an 
existing water tower. 

☒ Not Vacant:  

✓  

6. Relative gain to economic development, public health, safety and welfare: The 
proposed application would allow for another business to continue to operate 
within Leavenworth County.  There does not appear to be any detrimental 
effects to the public health, safety or welfare. 

✓ 

 
 
 

7. Conformance to the Comprehensive Plan: 
Future Land Use Map: Rural Residential 2.5 
 

 ✓ 



Section 4 Land Use and Development Plan Strategies: The proposed use is not 
compatible with the future land use designation. 
 

 

STAFF COMMENTS: 

The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for an existing crane rental business. The business is operating 

under an active SUP issued in 2021. LVCO BOCC Resolution 2020-25 approved the operation of this business for 

an initial 3-year term with a single renewal clause for an additional 2 years.  

The applicant in their narrative have requested a 10-year term.  Staff recommends that the terms of the original 

resolution be continued until the previously established termination date of January 13 of 2026.  

The general hours of operation are proposed to be Monday-Friday from 7:00AM until 5:00PM. Typically, the site 

will be visited by six employees. Customers to the site are not proposed. The proposed use is allowed with a special 

use permit. 

STAFF RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS: 

Conditions for approval of DEV-23-136, SUP for Tri-Hull Crane Rental are as follows: 
 
1. The SUP shall be compliant with LVCO BOCC Resolution 2020-25 and limited to a period of two (2) 

years and non-renewable. 
 

2. The business shall be limited to the hours of 6:00 AM until 5:00 PM, Monday-Friday and 8:00 AM until 
2:00 PM, Saturday.  
 

3. The SUP shall be limited to six full-time employees. 
 

4. The applicant shall pay for and supply to public works for review, prior to issuance of the SUP, a 
drainage structure assessment by a licensed Kansas engineer. The engineer’s assessment and opinion 
of impacted structure on the specified haul route to resist imposed loading over the term of the 24-
month term. The intent is to assess and maintain the structural integrity of the county roadway and 
structures for the duration of the SUP use. 
 

5. All business-related traffic shall be directed west to 24/40 Highway.  
 

6. Business-related traffic shall not be allowed to travel east along Loring Road. 
 

7. The existing RV shall be removed or an affidavit stating it will not be lived in shall be signed and 
notarized. 
 

8. The applicant shall adhere to the following memorandums:  
a. Memo - Kyle Anderson - Planning and Zoning, October 04, 2023 
b. Memo - Mitch Pleak, P.E. - Public Works, October 24, 2023 
c. Memo - John Jacobson - Planning and Zoning October 25,2023 
 

9. No signage is allowed in the right-of-way.  No signage is requested with the SUP.  All signage shall 
comply with Article 25, Sign Regulations of the Leavenworth County Zoning and Subdivision 
Regulations. 

 
10. No on-street parking shall be allowed. 
 

11. This SUP shall be limited to the Narrative dated October 2, 2023 submitted with this application. 
 



12. This SUP shall comply with all local, state, and federal rules and regulations that may be applicable. 
After approval of this SUP by the Board of County Commission, all conditions listed shall be adhered 
to and copies shall be provided to the Planning and Zoning Department within 30 days. 
 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-23-136, Special Use Permit for Tri-Hull Crane Rental, to the 
Board of County Commission, with Findings of Fact, and with or without conditions; or 
 

2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-23-136, Special Use Permit for Tri-Hull Crane Rental, to the 
Board of County Commission, with Findings of Fact; or  

 
3. Continue the Public hearing to another date, time, and place. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
A: Application & Narrative 

B: Zoning Map 

C: Memorandums 























<TAXPAYER_NAME> 
<DBA_NAME> 

ISSUE DATE 
<ISSUE_DT> 

TRANSACTION ID CONFIRMATION NUMBER 
<TRANS_ID> <CONFIRM_NUM> 

TAX CLEARANCE VALID THROUGH <EXPIRE_DT> 
Verification of this certificate can be obtained on our website, www.ksrevenue.org, 

or by calling the Kansas Department of Revenue at <Contact_Num>  

Laura Kelly, Governor
Mark A. Burghart, Secretary

www.ksrevenue.gov

10/02/2023

TYJ5-6MS7-782A C2KB-6PHA-P5M5

12/31/2023

785-296-3199

Tri-Hull Crane Rental, LLc

DBA as Tri-Hull Crane Rental, LLc



From:                                         Dylan Ri�er

Sent:                                           Tuesday, October 10, 2023 9:36 AM

To:                                               Johnson, Melissa

Cc:                                               Anderson, Kyle; Brown, Misty; Magaha, Chuck; Miller, Jamie; Noll,
Bill; PZ; Patzwald, Joshua; Van Parys, David; mpleak@olsson.com;
tyler.rebel@evergy.com

Subject:                                     Re: DEV-23-136 Special Use Permit - Tri Hull LLC Crane Rental at
24838 Loring Rd

 

Follow Up Flag:                      Follow up

Flag Status:                              Completed

 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.

 

No concerns from Reno Township Fire Department. 

 

On Mon, Oct 2, 2023 at 12:59 Johnson, Melissa <MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov> wrote:

The Department of Planning & Zoning has received an applica�on for a Special Use Permit
regarding Tri-Hull Crane Rental located at 24838 Loring Rd.

 

The Planning Staff would apricate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request. 
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by Wednesday
October 11th, 2023.

 

If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact us at (913) 684-0465
or at pz@leavenworthcounty.gov .

 

Thank you,

 

Melissa Johnson

Planner I

Leavenworth County

mailto:dritter@rtfd21.com
mailto:MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:MBrown@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:cmagaha@lvsheriff.org
mailto:JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:/O=Leavenworth-CJC/OU=CJC/cn=Recipients/cn=PZ@leavenworthcounty.org
mailto:jpatzwald@lvsheriff.org
mailto:DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:mpleak@olsson.com
mailto:tyler.rebel@evergy.com
mailto:MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:pz@leavenworthcounty.gov


Planning & Zoning Department

Leavenworth County Courthouse

300 Walnut St, Suite 212

Leavenworth County, Kansas 66048

(913) 684-0465

 

Disclaimer

 

This message and any a�achments are intended only for the use of the recipient or their authorized
representa�ve. The informa�on provided in this email is limited in scope and response detail by available
informa�on, current zoning and subdivision regula�ons. Depending on the level of development, the
applicable regula�ons can change. Final approval cannot be granted un�l a complete applica�on has
been submi�ed, reviewed and approved by the governing body. Nothing in this message or its contents
should be interpreted to authorize or conclude approval by Leavenworth County.

 

 

--

Deputy Chief
Dylan Ri�er 
Reno Township Fire Department 
12755 238th St, 66052
(913)-339-8973

https://www.google.com/maps/search/300+Walnut+St,+Suite+212+%0D%0A+Leavenworth+County,+Kansas+66048?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/300+Walnut+St,+Suite+212+%0D%0A+Leavenworth+County,+Kansas+66048?entry=gmail&source=g


 

 

COUNTY OF LEAVENWORTH 
Department of Public Works 

300 Walnut, Suite 007  
Leavenworth, Kansas 66048-2815 

Phone (913) 684-0470 
Fax (913) 684-0473 

 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

October 24th, 2023 
 

Tri-Hull DEV-23-136 – Public Works Review 

 

The Public Works Department have reviewed the following documents:   

• 2023.10.02 Application 

• 2023.09.25 Aerial view of property 

• 2023 Narrative of business 

• 2023.10.19 Applicant Correspondence 

 

Below are comments from the received documents listed above.  Direct any questions to John Jacobson at 

jjacobson@leavenworthcounty.gov. 

 

Public Works review is limited to public right-of-way only and the route along Loring Road between US-

24/40 and the SUP Site (24838 Loring Road).  Route is a gravel roadway. 

 

Planning and Zoning Department has contacted KDOT regarding the SUP access from US-24/40 to Loring. 

 

Route was reviewed for traffic and physical roadway impacts with no comments at this time.   

 

 

Public Works Review: 

1. Route includes two (2) 24” corrugated metal pipes and a reinforcement box culvert (RCB).  County 

provided available information on the existing RCB, which consisted of an inspection report.  As-

built plans are not available.  Olsson conducted a site visit on the storm structures and found that 

the pipes are in good condition.  The RCB is in fair condition under the driving surface and very 

poor condition at the wingwalls.   

 

According to the applicant’s website, they offer crane rentals which are in excess of legal loads.  It 

is recommended a load rating signed by a Kansas Professional Engineer be completed on the 

corrugated metal pipe crossings and RCB.   

 

Per the Traffic Impact Policy: 

The Applicant shall inspect and complete a structural health assessment for the structures along 

the route. This assessment shall evaluate the condition and ability for all drainage structures under 

the public roadway to satisfactorily carry the anticipated truck loadings. The structures shall be 

defined as all bridges (including those with a length less than FHWA’s 20-foot bridge length), 

mailto:jjacobson@leavenworthcounty.gov


 

 

COUNTY OF LEAVENWORTH 
Department of Public Works 

300 Walnut, Suite 007  
Leavenworth, Kansas 66048-2815 

Phone (913) 684-0470 
Fax (913) 684-0473 

 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

culverts, and storm pipes greater than 15 inches in diameter. The assessment shall include a photo 

log of each structure, condition assessment (utilize NBI ratings criteria, where applicable), 

tabulation of deficiencies, and recommendation for suitability to sustain the proposed traffic 

loadings. The assessment shall be signed and sealed by a professional engineer registered in the 

State of Kansas. The photo log shall include two structure end elevations, one photo looking in 

each direction along the roadway at the structure, one photo looking upstream, one photo looking 

downstream, and at least one photo through the opening of the structure. 



 
 

County of Leavenworth  
Planning & Zoning Department 

300 Walnut, Suite 212 

Leavenworth, Kansas 66048 

Phone: 913-684-0465 
 

 

October 25, 2023 
 
To: Donna Hull   
 24838 Loring Road 
 Lawrence, KS 66044 
 
Re: Special Use Permit 
 DEV-23-136 
  
  
Ms. Hull, 
 
Staff has reviewed the application and narrative for Tri Hull Crane Rental, which was submitted on 
October 2, 2023.   
 
Upon review of your application, staff has the following comments: 
 

1. The narrative indicates a change in traffic pattern to Loring Road. Please refer to the previously 

issued SUP (Resolution 2020-25) for associated restrictions.  

2. Please be advised that staff will recommend all traffic be diverted to the 24/40 corridor. 

3. Please be advised that in accordance with the Traffic Impact Policy, the applicant will be 

required to have a licensed Kansas Professional Engineer complete a Drainage Structure 

Assessment for all impacted structures on the haul route as a condition of approval.    

4. The narrative does not indicate major changes to the original issued SUP. Please confirm that 

this is the intent.  

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at (913) 684-0465 or 

at JJacobson@LeavenworthCounty.Gov 

Respectfully, 

 

John Jacobson  

Director 

Planning and Zoning  

Leavenworth County 





      LEAVENWORTH COUNTY 
      PLANNING COMMISSION 

STAFF REPORT 
CASE NO: DEV-23-118 MCGEE/PCDI Rezone                                                                 November 8, 2023 

REQUEST: Public Hearing Required 

☒ ZONING AMENDMENT                 ☐ SPECIAL USE PERMIT 

☐ TEMPORARY SPECIAL USE PERMIT 

STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
JOHN JACOBSON 
DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT PROPERTY: 17679 166TH STREET 
 

APPLICANT/APPLICANT AGENT: 
JOE HERRING 
HERRING SURVEYING COMPANY 

PROPERTY OWNER: 
WILMA K MCGEE 
17679 166TH STREET 
BASEHOR, KS 66007 

CONCURRENT APPLICATIONS: 
N/A 

LAND USE 

ZONING: RR-2.5 

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION: 
MIXED RESIDENTIAL 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
The North 908.37 feet of the Southeast ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of Section 16, 
Township 11 South, Range 22 East of the Sixth P.M. in Leavenworth County, 
Kansas. 

SUBDIVISION: N/A 

FLOODPLAIN: N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL PROPERTY INFORMATION 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-23-118, Rezone for McGee/ PCDI, 

to the Board of County Commission, with or without conditions; or 
2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-23-118, Rezone for McGee/ PCDI, to 

the Board of County Commission for the following reasons; or  
3. Continue the hearing to another date, time, and place. 

PARCEL SIZE: 26.6 ACRES  

PARCEL ID NO:  
185-16-0-00-00-063.00 

BUILDINGS:  
SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE AND 
ACCESSORY STRUCTURES 

PROJECT SUMMARY: 
Request to rezone one parcel at 17679 166th Street from RR-2.5 to RR-1 (43). 

ACCESS/STREET: 
166TH STREET - COUNTY COLLECTOR, 
PAVED, ±24’ WIDE 

Location Map:  
 
 

 

UTILITIES 

SEWER: SEPTIC 

FIRE: FAIRMOUNT 

WATER: SUBURBAN WATER 

ELECTRIC: EVERGY 

NOTICE & REVIEW: 

STAFF REVIEW: 9/27/2023 

NEWSPAPER NOTIFICATION: 
10/17/2023 

NOTICE TO SURROUNDING 
PROPERTY OWNERS: 

8/22/2023 
 
 
 

  



FACTORS TO BE CONSIDERED: 

The following factors are to be considered by the Planning Commission and the 
Board of County Commissioners when approving or disapproving this Rezone 
request: 

Met Not Met 

1. Character of the Neighborhood: 
Density: Surrounding parcels range in size from 1 acre to more than 150 acres. 
The area is not densely populated.  
 
Nearby City Limits: Tonganoxie is more than 0.3 miles to the northeast.   
 
Initial Growth Management Area: This parcel is located within the Rural Growth 
Area. 

✓  

2. Zoning and uses of nearby property: 
Adjacent Uses: Most of the adjacent parcels are residential and agricultural in 
nature.  
 
Adjacent Zoning: All adjacent properties are zoned RR-2.5. The closest RR-1 (43) 
zoning district area is 670 ft to the west. 

✓  

3. Suitability of the Property for the uses to which is has been restricted: 
The property is suitable for rural residences and agricultural uses.  

✓  

4. Extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby 
property: 
The property is adjacent to a rural subdivision that matches the densities that 
are proposed in this rezoning request. Current county regulations allow for 
septic systems to be installed on lots 1 acre or greater so based on current 
county regulations, the proposed rezone should not detrimentally affect 
surrounding properties. Furthermore, if development were to occur, the 
proposed addition would exit onto a County Collector that should support 
additional traffic.  

✓  

5. Length of time the property has been vacant as zoned: 
Vacant: 

☒ Not Vacant: Existing House 
✓  

6. Relative gain to economic development, public health, safety and welfare: 
The rezoning does not impact economic development, public health, safety or 
welfare. In the event the parcel was to be developed as a rural subdivision, twice 
as many homes could potentially be constructed which may have a positive 
impact on economic development. As stated previously, current county 
regulations allow for septic systems on properties that are one acre or greater. 
Consideration of the impact on public health for lots of this size has already been 
decided. 

✓  

7. Conformance to the Comprehensive Plan: 
Future Land Use Map: Mixed Residential 
Section 4 Land Use and Development Plan Strategies: Mixed Residential is 
identified as a mixture of high density single-family and multi-family residential. 
There are currently no sanitary sewer systems within 660’ of the property and 
no plans to extend sanitary sewer to this site. R-1 (43) is the highest density 
residential that can be developed on this property currently. 

✓  

STAFF COMMENTS: 

This action was previously recommended denial at the September 13, 2023 Planning Commission meeting. Per 

statute, the petition was then forwarded to the BOCC for consideration. That body returned it to the Planning 

Commission for reconsideration on October 4, 2023.  



The applicant has included additional information in the form of a conceptual plan to better determine the layout 

of adjoining lots and address concerns expressed at the previous Planning Commission meeting.  

The applicants are in the process of acquiring the property. Owner authorization from both the party selling the 

property and the party purchasing, has been submitted with this request. The applicants are requesting a rezoning 

from Rural-Residential 2.5 to Residential - 1 (43).  

The Comprehensive Plan identifies the future land use of this area as Mixed Residential. Staff is generally 

supportive of the request due to the current county regulations surrounding development of sanitary sewer 

systems at the highest density permitted and compliance with the future land use plan. 

  

ATTACHMENTS: 
A: Application & Narrative 

B: Zoning Map 

C: Memorandums 

D: Neighbor Comments 

E: Conceptual Map 

 













PCDI HOMES/GERALD ST. PETER

17679 166TH STREET, BASEHOR, KANSAS











DEV-23-118 McGee/PCDI Rezone

1,395.4

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Feet1,395.40

Notes

Legend

697.72

1 in. = 698ft.

This Cadastral Map is for informational purposes only.  It does not purport to
represent a property boundary survey of the parcels shown and shall not be

used for conveyances or the establishment of property boundaries.

Parcel Number

Parcel

City Limit Line

Major Road

<all other values>

70

Road

<all other values>

PRIVATE

Railroad

Section

Section Boundaries

County Boundary

Zoning

B-1

B-2

B-3

I-1

I-2

I-3

MXD

PC

PI

PR-1

PR-2

PR-3

PUD

R-1

R-1(15)

R-1(43)

R-2



1

Allison, Amy

From: McAfee, Joe

Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 4:36 PM

To: Allison, Amy

Subject: RE: RE: DEV-22-118 Rezoning– McGee/PCDI

Amy: 
No comment from PW. Thanks. 
 

From: Allison, Amy <AAllison@leavenworthcounty.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 3:51 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <cmagaha@lvsheriff.org>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Miller, Jamie 
<JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@lvsheriff.org>; Brown, Misty 
<MBrown@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'Mitch Pleak' <mpleak@olsson.com>; Noll, Bill <BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 
McAfee, Joe <JMcAfee@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org' <lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>; 
'Travis@suburbanwaterinc.com' <Travis@suburbanwaterinc.com>; 'DesignGroupShawnee@evergy.com' 
<DesignGroupShawnee@evergy.com> 
Cc: PZ <PZ@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: RE: DEV-22-118 Rezoning– McGee/PCDI 
 
Good Afternoon, 
 
The Department of Planning and Zoning has received an application for a Rezoning from RR-2.5 to R-1 (43) for property 
located at 17679 166th Street. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request. Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by Wednesday, August 30, 2023. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at (913) 684-0465 or at 
Aallison@LeavenworthCounty.Gov 
 
Thank you, 
 
Amy Allison, AICP 
Deputy Director 
Planning & Zoning 
Leavenworth County 
913.364.5757 
 
Disclaimer 
 
This message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the recipient or their authorized representative. The information provided in this 
email is limited in scope and response detail by available information, current zoning and subdivision regulations. Depending on the level of 
development, the applicable regulations can change. Final approval cannot be granted until a complete application has been submitted, reviewed 
and approved by the governing body.   Nothing in this message or its contents should be interpreted to authorize or conclude approval by 
Leavenworth County.  

 

 



1

Allison, Amy

From: Anderson, Kyle

Sent: Friday, August 18, 2023 10:00 AM

To: Allison, Amy

Subject: RE: RE: DEV-22-118 Rezoning– McGee/PCDI

The prior owners may have been operating a business without an SUP. The property has sold to new owners so possible 
business is no longer operating on the property. 
 
Kyle Anderson 
Environmental Technician/Code Enforcement 
Leavenworth County Planning & Zoning 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 
Leavenworth, KS 66048 
913-684-1084 
 
Disclaimer: This message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the recipient or their authorized representative. The information 
provided in this email is limited in scope and response detail by available information, current zoning and subdivision regulations. Depending on the 
level of development, the applicable regulations can change. Final approval cannot be granted until a complete application has been submitted, 
reviewed and approved by the governing body.   Nothing in this message or its contents should be interpreted to authorize or conclude approval by 
Leavenworth County.  

 

From: Allison, Amy <AAllison@leavenworthcounty.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 3:51 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <cmagaha@lvsheriff.org>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Miller, Jamie 
<JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@lvsheriff.org>; Brown, Misty 
<MBrown@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'Mitch Pleak' <mpleak@olsson.com>; Noll, Bill <BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 
McAfee, Joe <JMcAfee@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org' <lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>; 
'Travis@suburbanwaterinc.com' <Travis@suburbanwaterinc.com>; 'DesignGroupShawnee@evergy.com' 
<DesignGroupShawnee@evergy.com> 
Cc: PZ <PZ@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: RE: DEV-22-118 Rezoning– McGee/PCDI 
 
Good Afternoon, 
 
The Department of Planning and Zoning has received an application for a Rezoning from RR-2.5 to R-1 (43) for property 
located at 17679 166th Street. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request. Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by Wednesday, August 30, 2023. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at (913) 684-0465 or at 
Aallison@LeavenworthCounty.Gov 
 
Thank you, 
 
Amy Allison, AICP 
Deputy Director 
Planning & Zoning 
Leavenworth County 
913.364.5757 



1

Allison, Amy

From: Kyle Burkhardt <Kyle.Burkhardt@evergy.com>

Sent: Friday, August 18, 2023 8:04 AM

To: Allison, Amy; Magaha, Chuck; Anderson, Kyle; Miller, Jamie; Patzwald, Joshua; Brown, 

Misty; 'Mitch Pleak'; Noll, Bill; McAfee, Joe; 'lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org'; 

'Travis@suburbanwaterinc.com'; Design Group Shawnee

Cc: PZ

Subject: RE: DEV-22-118 Rezoning– McGee/PCDI

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 

Internal Use Only 

 
Evergy has no issues with the following request. Would just like to see adequate utility easements. 
 
Thank you  
 
Kyle Burkhardt  
Evergy 
TD Designer II 

O 785-508-2408 
Kyle.Burkhardt@evergy.com 

 

 
 

From: Allison, Amy <AAllison@leavenworthcounty.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 3:51 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <cmagaha@lvsheriff.org>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Miller, Jamie 
<JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@lvsheriff.org>; Brown, Misty 
<MBrown@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'Mitch Pleak' <mpleak@olsson.com>; Noll, Bill <BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 
McAfee, Joe <JMcAfee@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org' <lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>; 
'Travis@suburbanwaterinc.com' <Travis@suburbanwaterinc.com>; Design Group Shawnee 
<DesignGroupShawnee@evergy.com> 
Cc: PZ <PZ@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: RE: DEV-22-118 Rezoning– McGee/PCDI 
 
Good A fternoon, The Department o f Planni ng and Z oning has received a n appli cation for a Rezoni ng from RR-2. 5 to R-1 (43) for property located at 17679 166th Street. The Planni ng Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of  

ZjQcmQRYFpfptBa nnerStart 

 

This Message Is From an External Sender  

This message came from outside your organization.  
    Report Suspicious    

 

ZjQcmQRYFp fptBa nnerEnd 

Good Afternoon, 
 
The Department of Planning and Zoning has received an application for a Rezoning from RR-2.5 to R-1 (43) for property 
located at 17679 166th Street. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request. Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by Wednesday, August 30, 2023. 



1

Allison, Amy

From: Barb Fehrenbach <barbf47@aol.com>

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 4:46 PM

To: Allison, Amy

Subject: Fw: McGee Property on 166th St

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 

This is the email that I sent to our county commissioner in regards to the letter you sent on the 
McGee Property.  If I need to send this in letter form please let me know otherwise please know that 
we are against this rezoning request. 
 
----- Forwarded Message ----- 
From: Barb Fehrenbach <barbf47@aol.com> 
To: //dsmith@leavenworthcounty.gov <//dsmith@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 at 03:26:19 PM CDT 
Subject: McGee Property on 166th St 
 

My husband and I live 2 doors to the south of the McGee property which was recently purchased by 
PCDI. We would like for it to be known that we are not in favor of the county changing the zoning 
requirements for this property to R-1. We also question why it is currently RR-2.5 instead of 
Agriculture but that's irreverent at this time. 
Reasons for our request to not approve the change: 
1) Additional traffic - the traffic is already very heavy on this portion of 166th especially since the 
upgrade of 158th. During that upgrade 166th was the detour route and the additional traffic has never 
reduced. The speeding, racing and so on is ridiculous, unsafe and there is no control.  This has a lot 
to do with all the wrecks at Evans and 166th intersection. We have addressed this with the Sheriff's 
office before. There's really no where for them to sit and observe on this road. 
2) Sewers are not available in this area and septic systems on 1.3 acre lots do not work. There are 
many cases of lots in this area not perking during normal years. Being in a drought now will probably 
change that but only for short term.  Also the homes in the Childs Addition have had problems with 
their septic systems in the past. 
3) Most of the people who live in this area moved here to have a little bit of land and not be in a sub-
division with close neighbors. The county has changed/reduced the required lot size several times 
over the years. There should be a limit to granting these variances. Sub-divisions belong in the city 
and living in the country should be different. The city provides all sorts of amenities that we do not 
have in the country and most of us gave them up to live in the country. 
4) Leavenworth County is known for granting variances to the lot size requirement depending on what 
your name is (three names in particular come to mind). Why can't our county commissioners and 
Planning Board govern consistently with the same rules applying to all. I could give several examples 
here but I won't. 
5) All the county cares about is the additional tax revenue. They won't deal with any of the issues of 
traffic, leaking septic systems etc. What benefits will we see from the county with this additional tax 
revenues?  Other than the roads that's it and the road to north side of our property we and our 
neighbors had to pay for ourselves to have it improved and blacktop. When we first moved out here 
the county did mow the weeds along the road not so much anymore. 
We originally moved from Wyandotte County to Basehor for lower taxes and better schools for our 
sons.  We then moved from Basehor city limits to the country to have some land and room for our 



2

sons to roam and grow up on. Our taxes have more than tripled over the years and our peace and 
quiet of living in the country has gone.  
 
Please vote NO to granting this variance. 
 
Thank you, 
Orlie and Barbara Fehrenbach 
17473 166th St 
Basehor, KS 
 
PS:  There is more than 200 acres in Basehor right in town by BIS that can be developed. Let them 
build sub-divisions there. 
 







1

Allison, Amy

From: Kyle Burkhardt <Kyle.Burkhardt@evergy.com>

Sent: Friday, August 18, 2023 8:04 AM

To: Allison, Amy; Magaha, Chuck; Anderson, Kyle; Miller, Jamie; Patzwald, Joshua; Brown, 

Misty; 'Mitch Pleak'; Noll, Bill; McAfee, Joe; 'lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org'; 

'Travis@suburbanwaterinc.com'; Design Group Shawnee

Cc: PZ

Subject: RE: DEV-22-118 Rezoning– McGee/PCDI

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 

Internal Use Only 

 
Evergy has no issues with the following request. Would just like to see adequate utility easements. 
 
Thank you  
 
Kyle Burkhardt  
Evergy 
TD Designer II 

O 785-508-2408 
Kyle.Burkhardt@evergy.com 

 

 
 

From: Allison, Amy <AAllison@leavenworthcounty.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 3:51 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <cmagaha@lvsheriff.org>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Miller, Jamie 
<JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@lvsheriff.org>; Brown, Misty 
<MBrown@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'Mitch Pleak' <mpleak@olsson.com>; Noll, Bill <BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 
McAfee, Joe <JMcAfee@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org' <lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>; 
'Travis@suburbanwaterinc.com' <Travis@suburbanwaterinc.com>; Design Group Shawnee 
<DesignGroupShawnee@evergy.com> 
Cc: PZ <PZ@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: RE: DEV-22-118 Rezoning– McGee/PCDI 
 
Good A fternoon, The Department o f Planni ng and Z oning has received a n appli cation for a Rezoni ng from RR-2. 5 to R-1 (43) for property located at 17679 166th Street. The Planni ng Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of  

ZjQcmQRYFpfptBa nnerStart 

 

This Message Is From an External Sender  

This message came from outside your organization.  
    Report Suspicious    

 

ZjQcmQRYFp fptBa nnerEnd 

Good Afternoon, 
 
The Department of Planning and Zoning has received an application for a Rezoning from RR-2.5 to R-1 (43) for property 
located at 17679 166th Street. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request. Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by Wednesday, August 30, 2023. 



2

 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at (913) 684-0465 or at 
Aallison@LeavenworthCounty.Gov 
 
Thank you, 
 
Amy Allison, AICP 
Deputy Director 
Planning & Zoning 
Leavenworth County 
913.364.5757 
 
Disclaimer 
 
This message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the recipient or their authorized representative. The information provided in this 
email is limited in scope and response detail by available information, current zoning and subdivision regulations. Depending on the level of 
development, the applicable regulations can change. Final approval cannot be granted until a complete application has been submitted, reviewed 
and approved by the governing body.   Nothing in this message or its contents should be interpreted to authorize or conclude approval by 
Leavenworth County.  

 

 
 



1

Allison, Amy

From: Anderson, Kyle

Sent: Friday, August 18, 2023 10:00 AM

To: Allison, Amy

Subject: RE: RE: DEV-22-118 Rezoning– McGee/PCDI

The prior owners may have been operating a business without an SUP. The property has sold to new owners so possible 
business is no longer operating on the property. 
 
Kyle Anderson 
Environmental Technician/Code Enforcement 
Leavenworth County Planning & Zoning 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 
Leavenworth, KS 66048 
913-684-1084 
 
Disclaimer: This message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the recipient or their authorized representative. The information 
provided in this email is limited in scope and response detail by available information, current zoning and subdivision regulations. Depending on the 
level of development, the applicable regulations can change. Final approval cannot be granted until a complete application has been submitted, 
reviewed and approved by the governing body.   Nothing in this message or its contents should be interpreted to authorize or conclude approval by 
Leavenworth County.  

 

From: Allison, Amy <AAllison@leavenworthcounty.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 3:51 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <cmagaha@lvsheriff.org>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Miller, Jamie 
<JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@lvsheriff.org>; Brown, Misty 
<MBrown@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'Mitch Pleak' <mpleak@olsson.com>; Noll, Bill <BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 
McAfee, Joe <JMcAfee@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org' <lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>; 
'Travis@suburbanwaterinc.com' <Travis@suburbanwaterinc.com>; 'DesignGroupShawnee@evergy.com' 
<DesignGroupShawnee@evergy.com> 
Cc: PZ <PZ@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: RE: DEV-22-118 Rezoning– McGee/PCDI 
 
Good Afternoon, 
 
The Department of Planning and Zoning has received an application for a Rezoning from RR-2.5 to R-1 (43) for property 
located at 17679 166th Street. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request. Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by Wednesday, August 30, 2023. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at (913) 684-0465 or at 
Aallison@LeavenworthCounty.Gov 
 
Thank you, 
 
Amy Allison, AICP 
Deputy Director 
Planning & Zoning 
Leavenworth County 
913.364.5757 



1

Allison, Amy

From: McAfee, Joe

Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 4:36 PM

To: Allison, Amy

Subject: RE: RE: DEV-22-118 Rezoning– McGee/PCDI

Amy: 
No comment from PW. Thanks. 
 

From: Allison, Amy <AAllison@leavenworthcounty.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 3:51 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <cmagaha@lvsheriff.org>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Miller, Jamie 
<JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@lvsheriff.org>; Brown, Misty 
<MBrown@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'Mitch Pleak' <mpleak@olsson.com>; Noll, Bill <BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 
McAfee, Joe <JMcAfee@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org' <lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>; 
'Travis@suburbanwaterinc.com' <Travis@suburbanwaterinc.com>; 'DesignGroupShawnee@evergy.com' 
<DesignGroupShawnee@evergy.com> 
Cc: PZ <PZ@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: RE: DEV-22-118 Rezoning– McGee/PCDI 
 
Good Afternoon, 
 
The Department of Planning and Zoning has received an application for a Rezoning from RR-2.5 to R-1 (43) for property 
located at 17679 166th Street. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request. Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by Wednesday, August 30, 2023. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at (913) 684-0465 or at 
Aallison@LeavenworthCounty.Gov 
 
Thank you, 
 
Amy Allison, AICP 
Deputy Director 
Planning & Zoning 
Leavenworth County 
913.364.5757 
 
Disclaimer 
 
This message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the recipient or their authorized representative. The information provided in this 
email is limited in scope and response detail by available information, current zoning and subdivision regulations. Depending on the level of 
development, the applicable regulations can change. Final approval cannot be granted until a complete application has been submitted, reviewed 
and approved by the governing body.   Nothing in this message or its contents should be interpreted to authorize or conclude approval by 
Leavenworth County.  

 

 





      LEAVENWORTH COUNTY 
      PLANNING COMMISSION 

STAFF REPORT 
 

CASE NO: DEV-23-137 Murphy/Reilly Rezone                                                              November 8, 2023 
 

REQUEST: Public Hearing Required 

☒ ZONING AMENDMENT                 ☐ SPECIAL USE PERMIT 

☐ TEMPORARY SPECIAL USE PERMIT 

STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
John Jacobson  
DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT PROPERTY: 16271 Evans Road, Basehor, Kansas  

 

APPLICANT/APPLICANT AGENT: 
Agent: Reilly Dev. LLC 
608 Delaware  
Leavenworth, Kansas 66048  

PROPERTY OWNER: 
Daniel C and Blanche T Murphy Trust 
2439 E. Leach Ave.  
De Moines IA 50320 

CONCURRENT APPLICATIONS: 
N/A 

LAND USE 

ZONING: RR-2.5  

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION: 
MIXED RESIDENTIAL (Highest 
Allowable Density) 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
The Northwest ¼ of Section 15, Township 11, South, Range 22 East of the 6th 
P.M. in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

SUBDIVISION: N/A 

FLOODPLAIN: N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL PROPERTY INFORMATION 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-23-137, Rezone for Reilly Dev. 

LLC to the Board of County Commission, with or without conditions; or 
2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-23-137, Rezone for Reilly Dev. 

LLC, to the Board of County Commission for the following reasons; or  
3. Continue the hearing to another date, time, and place. 

PARCEL SIZE: +- 153.90 ACRES  

PARCEL ID NO:  
185-15-0-00-00-003.00 

BUILDINGS:  
SFR and accessory outbuildings 

PROJECT SUMMARY: 
Request to rezone one parcel at 16271 Evans Road  
(PID:185-15-0-00-00-003.00) from RR 2.5 to R-1(43). 

ACCESS/STREET: 
Evans Road, Collector,  
Paved, ±24’ WIDE 

Location Map:  
 

 
 

UTILITIES 

SEWER: SEPTIC 

FIRE: FAIRMOUNT DISTRICT 

WATER: SUBURBAN WATER 

ELECTRIC: EVERGY 

NOTICE & REVIEW: 

STAFF REVIEW: 10/16/2023 

NEWSPAPER NOTIFICATION: 
10/17/2023 

NOTICE TO SURROUNDING 
PROPERTY OWNERS: 

10/18/2023 

  



FACTORS TO BE CONSIDERED: 

The following factors are to be considered by the Planning Commission and the 
Board of County Commissioners when approving or disapproving this Rezone 
request: 

Met Not Met 

1. Character of the Neighborhood: 
Density: Surrounding parcels range in size from .5 acres to more than 35 acres. 
The area has a mix of suburban and rural land uses.  
 
Nearby City Limits: Basehor has a partial contiguous boundary on the north and 
southeast corners of this parcel.   
 
Initial Growth Management Area: This parcel is located within Basehor’s Initial 
Growth Area. 

✓   

2. Zoning and uses of nearby property: 
Adjacent Uses: Most of the adjacent parcels are residential and agricultural in 
nature. There are several proximity subdivisions that either meet or exceed 
proposed densities.  
 
Adjacent Zoning: All adjacent properties are zoned are RR-2.5  

✓  

3. Suitability of the Property for the uses to which is has been restricted: 
The property is suitable for rural residences.  

✓  

4. Extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby 
property: 
Nearby properties are unlikely to be negatively impacted as the proposed 
rezoning remains residential and is in line with adjoining densities.  

✓  

5. Length of time the property has been vacant as zoned: 
Vacant: 

☒ Not Vacant:  
✓  

6. Relative gain to economic development, public health, safety and welfare: 
The rezoning does not impact economic development, public health, safety or 
welfare. In the event the parcel is developed as a rural subdivision, twice as 
many homes could potentially be constructed which may have a positive impact 
on economic development.  

✓  

7. Conformance to the Comprehensive Plan: 
Future Land Use Map: Mixed Residential (highest Allowable Density) 
Section 4 Land Use and Development Plan Strategies: The proposed use is 
compatible with the future land use designation. 
 

✓  

 

STAFF COMMENTS: 

The applicants are requesting a rezoning from Rural-Residential 2.5 to Residential 1(43). The 

Comprehensive Plan identifies the future land use of this area as Mixed Use Residential.  This designation 

allows single family homes as well as townhome and multi-family densities.  

This parcel is clearly within the Initial Growth Area for the City of Basehor.  Basehor has expressed concern 

that this development would impact the community’s logical growth path to the west.  While it is logical 

that some form of impediment is likely should the parcel develop, the degree of impact is harder to assess. 

 

For example, there are several proximity subdivisions that meet or exceed the projects proposed densities 

that are not currently served by public sewer.  An issue here is the location of available city sanitary sewer 

that is approximately 1 mile from this proposed location.   

 



Basehor`s concerns and corresponding review of Dev-23-137 is attached for your review.  

   

While staff has carefully considered the petition and understands the request that does not conform to 

the corresponding IGA community’s utility request, staff recommends approval for the following reasons: 

1. The requested use is the least dense of its future land use designation and is compliant with the Future 

Land Use Plan.  

2. The nearest city receiving sewer is located a mile to the Northeast, therefore making extension of 

sanitary sewer unlikely at this time. 

3. There are similar and higher density uses established in the existing development corridor. 

4. The developer and the City of Basehor can at both party’s discretion and as a preliminary action to 

platting, logically plan corresponding utility layouts that promote a logical and less intrusive 

improvement /construction and potentially, future annexation process when public sanitary sewer 

becomes available to the site at a later date.  

  

ATTACHMENTS: 
A: Application & Narrative 

B: Zoning Map 

C: Memorandums 

D: Conceptual Plan 

 

 















1

Johnson, Melissa

From: Krystal A. Voth <kvoth@cityofbasehor.org>

Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2023 1:57 PM

To: Johnson, Melissa

Cc: Leslee Rivarola

Subject: RE: DEV-23-137 Rezoning – Murphy Trust; Reilly Development LLC

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Melissa, 
 
Good afternoon and thank you for sending this item to the City of Basehor. Please see the City of Basehor’s story map 
related to the Sanitary Sewer Master Plan. As you can see, this proposed development is located within the Hog Creek 
watershed and could be serviced via a gravity-fed sanitary sewer line. This property is located within the “Hog Creek 
Interceptor Phase II” project area as detailed on pages 23 & 24 sections 4.2.4 and 4.2.5 of the City of Basehor 2020 
Sanitary Sewer Master plan. This area of unincorporated Leavenworth County, if sewered, opens the potential for 
significant residential development that can be serviced via gravity-fed sanitary sewer. The City of Basehor has 
significant interest in this property connecting to the City of Basehor’s sanitary sewer system, which is currently 
approximately one-mile to the north. 
 
 Additionally, the extension of sanitary sewer to service this property allows for the potential decommissioning of the 
lagoons and connection of Leavenworth County Sewer District # 5 to the City of Basehor infrastructure. This concept is 
contemplated in the Leavenworth County and City of Basehor Funding Agreement for 155th Street Road Improvements.  
 
We respectfully request that Staff, the Planning Commission and the Board of County Commissioners thoughtfully 
consider the impact of rezoning this property to the RR-1 (one-acre minimum) zoning district and the impact that may 
have on the future development of the City of Basehor and the ability to extend sanitary sewer to this general 
development area. Your consideration of this matter is greatly appreciated.  
 
The City of Basehor looks forward to working with Leavenworth County Staff, the Board of County Commission, and Mr. 
Reilly should the County desire to see this expansion of Basehor’s sanitary sewer system to support shared goals. 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Krystal A. Voth, CFM 
Planning & Zoning Director 
City of Basehor, KS 
2620 N 155th Street 
913-724-1370 
CityofBasehor.org 
 

 



 
 

County of Leavenworth  
Planning & Zoning Department 

300 Walnut, Suite 212 

Leavenworth, Kansas 66048 

Phone: 913-684-0465 
 

Leavenworth County Planning and Zoning Department 
Leavenworth County Courthouse 

300 Walnut Suite 212 Leavenworth, Kansas   66048 

October 25, 2023 
 
To: Mike Reilly  
 Reilly Development LLC  
 608 Delaware Street 
 Leavenworth, KS 66048 
 
Re: R-1 (43) Zoning Amendment 16271 Evans Road 
 DEV-23-137 
  
  
Mr. Reilly, 
 
Staff has reviewed the application and narrative for zoning amendment for the above-mentioned 
address, which was submitted on October 02, 2023.   
 
Upon review of your application, staff has the following comments: 
 

1. The property lies wholly within the Initial Growth Area of the City of Basehor. Please see the 

attached letter from the City of Basehor. Please provide a response narrative for inclusion in 

the planning commission review materials. 

2. The application and request generally meet the spirit and intent of the most current adopted 

Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Please provide the additional information indicated above by November 02, 2023. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at (913) 684-0465 or 

at JJacobson@LeavenworthCounty.Gov 

Respectfully, 

 

John Jacobson   

Director 

Planning and Zoning  

Leavenworth County 



                                  

                         
 

 
1216 N 155th Street         Phone : 913 –724–1800 

PO BOX 588       Fax : 913–724–1505 

Basehor, Kansas 66007  Web : suburbanwaterinc.com 

  

 

 

 

October 11th, 2023 

 

Leavenworth County Planning and Zoning 

 

RE: LVCO Case Number DEV-23-137 

 

 

Suburban water has no objection to the re-zoning application for the property in case # DEV-23-

137. Suburban has existing water infrastructure, along both Evans Road and 166th Street. Suburban has 

not evaluated what if any improvements maybe necessary to serve the property development. Those 

considerations would be considered, upon the completion of a preliminary and final plat being submitted 

for Suburban’s evaluation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Travis J Miles 

President 



2

 
 
 

From: Johnson, Melissa <MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 5:01 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <cmagaha@lvsheriff.org>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Miller, Jamie 
<JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@lvsheriff.org>; Van Parys, David 
<DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'mpleak@olsson.com' <mpleak@olsson.com>; Noll, Bill 
<BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org' <lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>; Design Group 
Shawnee <DesignGroupShawnee@evergy.com> 
Cc: 'travis@suburbanwaterInc.com' <travis@suburbanwaterInc.com>; 'trish@suburbanwaterinc.com' 
<trish@suburbanwaterinc.com>; Krystal A. Voth <kvoth@cityofbasehor.org>; McAfee, Joe 
<JMcAfee@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Baumchen, Daniel <DBaumchen@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Brown, Misty 
<MBrown@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: RE: DEV-23-137 Rezoning – Murphy Trust; Reilly Development LLC 
 
The Department of Planning & Zoning has received an application for a Rezoning Case. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request.  Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by Thursday, October 12th, 2023. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact us at (913) 684-0465 or 
pz@leavenworthcounty.gov . 
 
Thank you, 
 
Melissa Johnson 
Planner I 
Leavenworth County 
Planning & Zoning Department 
Leavenworth County Courthouse 
300 Walnut St, Suite 212 
Leavenworth County, Kansas 66048 
(913) 684-0465 
 
Disclaimer 
 

This message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the recipient or their authorized representative. The information 
provided in this email is limited in scope and response detail by available information, current zoning and subdivision regulations. 
Depending on the level of development, the applicable regulations can change. Final approval cannot be granted until a complete 
application has been submitted, reviewed and approved by the governing body. Nothing in this message or its contents should be 
interpreted to authorize or conclude approval by Leavenworth County.  

 
 



1

Johnson, Melissa

From: Mike Lingenfelser <lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>
Sent: Monday, October 9, 2023 8:50 AM
To: Johnson, Melissa
Subject: Re: DEV-23-137 Rezoning – Murphy Trust; Reilly Development LLC

Follow Up Flag: FollowUp
Flag Status: Flagged

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 
 
Melissa 
They will need to be able to provide hydrants per code throughout the development. 
Mike Lingenfelser, Fire Chief 
Fairmount Township Fire Department 
2624 N 155th St 
Basehor, Kansas 66007 
Work-913-724-4911 
Cell 913-306-0258 
 
 
On Tue, Oct 3, 2023 at 5:00 PM Johnson, Melissa <MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov> wrote: 

The Department of Planning & Zoning has received an application for a Rezoning Case. 

  

The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request.  Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by Thursday, October 12th, 2023. 

  

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact us at (913) 684-0465 or 
pz@leavenworthcounty.gov . 

  

Thank you, 

  

Melissa Johnson 

Planner I 

Leavenworth County 

Planning & Zoning Department 



1

Johnson, Melissa

From: Matt Roecker <Matt.Roecker@evergy.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 5, 2023 12:33 PM
To: Johnson, Melissa
Subject: RE: RE: DEV-23-137 Rezoning – Murphy Trust; Reilly Development LLC

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 

Internal Use Only 

 
Melissa, 
 
Yes, Evergy has the capability to serve this new development. 
 
Thanks  
Matt Roecker  
Evergy  
TD Designer IV 
matt.roecker@evergy.com 
913-667-5116 
 
 
 

From: Johnson, Melissa <MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, October 5, 2023 11:34 AM 
To: Matt Roecker <matt.roecker@evergy.com> 
Subject: FW: RE: DEV-23-137 Rezoning – Murphy Trust; Reilly Development LLC 
 
Here is the reque sted pa cket. If you have any questions, please let me know. T hank you, Meli ssa Johnson Planner I Leavenw orth County Planning & Z oning De partme nt Leavenw orth County Courthouse 30 0 Walnut St, Suite 212 Leavenw orth County,  
ZjQcmQRYFpfptBa nnerStart 

 

This Message Is From an External Sender  

This message came from outside your organization.  

    Report Suspicious    

 

ZjQcmQRYFpfptBa nnerE nd 

Here is the requested packet. 
 
If you have any questions, please let me know. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Melissa Johnson 
Planner I 
Leavenworth County 
Planning & Zoning Department 
Leavenworth County Courthouse 



2

300 Walnut St, Suite 212 
Leavenworth County, Kansas 66048 
(913) 684-0465 
 
Disclaimer 
 
This message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the recipient or their authorized representative. The information 
provided in this email is limited in scope and response detail by available information, current zoning and subdivision regulations. 
Depending on the level of development, the applicable regulations can change. Final approval cannot be granted until a complete 
application has been submitted, reviewed and approved by the governing body. Nothing in this message or its contents should be 
interpreted to authorize or conclude approval by Leavenworth County.  
 
 
 
 

From: Johnson, Melissa  
Sent: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 5:01 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <cmagaha@lvsheriff.org>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Miller, Jamie 
<JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@lvsheriff.org>; Van Parys, David 
<DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'mpleak@olsson.com' <mpleak@olsson.com>; Noll, Bill 
<BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org' <lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>; Design Group 
Shawnee <DesignGroupShawnee@evergy.com> 
Cc: 'travis@suburbanwaterInc.com' <travis@suburbanwaterInc.com>; 'trish@suburbanwaterinc.com' 
<trish@suburbanwaterinc.com>; 'Krystal A. Voth' <kvoth@cityofbasehor.org>; McAfee, Joe 
<JMcAfee@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Baumchen, Daniel <DBaumchen@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Brown, Misty 
<MBrown@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: RE: DEV-23-137 Rezoning – Murphy Trust; Reilly Development LLC 
 
The Department of Planning & Zoning has received an application for a Rezoning Case. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request.  Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by Thursday, October 12th, 2023. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact us at (913) 684-0465 or 
pz@leavenworthcounty.gov . 
 
Thank you, 
 
Melissa Johnson 
Planner I 
Leavenworth County 
Planning & Zoning Department 
Leavenworth County Courthouse 
300 Walnut St, Suite 212 
Leavenworth County, Kansas 66048 
(913) 684-0465 
 
Disclaimer 
 
This message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the recipient or their authorized representative. The information 
provided in this email is limited in scope and response detail by available information, current zoning and subdivision regulations. 
Depending on the level of development, the applicable regulations can change. Final approval cannot be granted until a complete 
application has been submitted, reviewed and approved by the governing body. Nothing in this message or its contents should be 
interpreted to authorize or conclude approval by Leavenworth County.  



3

 
 
 



1

Johnson, Melissa

From: Anderson, Kyle
Sent: Wednesday, October 4, 2023 10:46 AM
To: Johnson, Melissa
Subject: RE: RE: DEV-23-137 Rezoning – Murphy Trust; Reilly Development LLC

We have not received any complaints on this property. 
 
Kyle Anderson 
Environmental Technician/Code Enforcement 
Leavenworth County Planning & Zoning 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 
Leavenworth, KS 66048 
913-684-1084 
 
Disclaimer: This message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the recipient or their authorized representative. The information 
provided in this email is limited in scope and response detail by available information, current zoning and subdivision regulations. Depending on the 
level of development, the applicable regulations can change. Final approval cannot be granted until a complete application has been submitted, 
reviewed and approved by the governing body.   Nothing in this message or its contents should be interpreted to authorize or conclude approval by 
Leavenworth County.  
 

From: Johnson, Melissa <MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 5:01 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <cmagaha@lvsheriff.org>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Miller, Jamie 
<JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@lvsheriff.org>; Van Parys, David 
<DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'mpleak@olsson.com' <mpleak@olsson.com>; Noll, Bill 
<BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org' <lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>; Design Group 
Shawnee <DesignGroupShawnee@evergy.com> 
Cc: 'travis@suburbanwaterInc.com' <travis@suburbanwaterInc.com>; 'trish@suburbanwaterinc.com' 
<trish@suburbanwaterinc.com>; 'Krystal A. Voth' <kvoth@cityofbasehor.org>; McAfee, Joe 
<JMcAfee@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Baumchen, Daniel <DBaumchen@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Brown, Misty 
<MBrown@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: RE: DEV-23-137 Rezoning – Murphy Trust; Reilly Development LLC 
 
The Department of Planning & Zoning has received an application for a Rezoning Case. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request.  Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by Thursday, October 12th, 2023. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact us at (913) 684-0465 or 
pz@leavenworthcounty.gov . 
 
Thank you, 
 
Melissa Johnson 
Planner I 
Leavenworth County 
Planning & Zoning Department 
Leavenworth County Courthouse 
300 Walnut St, Suite 212 


	12023.10.11 PC Minutes.docx.pdf
	October 11, 2023

	2023.10.26 Bosworth 2 Drainage Study (Rev1).pdf
	1-Bosworth Drainage Study
	GENERAL INFORMATION
	METHODOLOGY
	EXISTING CONDITION ANALYSIS
	PROPOSED CONDITION ANALYSIS
	SUMMARY

	2-Drainage Map
	Sheets and Views
	Drainage Map-FIG 1
	Drainage Map-FIG 2


	3-Property Report Card1
	3-Property Report Card2
	4-HydroCad Report
	5_Soil_Report1
	Cover
	Preface
	Contents
	How Soil Surveys Are Made
	Soil Map
	Soil Map
	Legend
	Map Unit Legend
	Map Unit Descriptions
	Leavenworth County, Kansas
	7250—Gosport-Sogn complex, 7 to 35 percent slopes
	7588—Shelby loam, 1 to 3 percent slopes
	7591—Shelby-Pawnee complex, 3 to 7 percent slopes
	7906—Armster clay loam, 3 to 8 percent slopes, eroded
	7907—Armster clay loam, 8 to 12 percent slopes, eroded



	Soil Information for All Uses
	Soil Properties and Qualities
	Soil Qualities and Features
	Hydrologic Soil Group



	References

	6-TR-55 Document

	Bosworth Addition No.2 Final Plat-24X36 clean.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	24X36


	Bosworth Addition No.2 Preliminary Plat-24X36 clean.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	24X36



